
Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

 
AGENDA 
 
A.    MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 

B. ROLL CALL 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

D. PROCLAMATIONS 
 none 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. September 27, 2022 – Regular  Meeting Minutes 
 

F. APPOINTMENTS to BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
 None 
G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
 None 
 
H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 
 
Request to Address the Council Forms are located on the ledge just inside the entrance.  Please complete and place the form in 
the basket at the front of the room. 
 
Written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments may be  sent via email to:  
councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  Such comments will be 
provided to City Council prior to the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the 
public online following the meeting.  
Please note, when submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also not if your comment is on 
an agenda or non-agenda item. If a name and address are not provided, the provided comment will not be recorded in the 
official record. 
 
I. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. Easement Vacation – Public walkway between 511 and 519 Westview Drive 

 
J. CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Ground Emergency Medical Transportation (GEMT) Renewal Contract 
2. MS Office 365 Renewal (SHI Inc.) 
3. Emerald Ash Borer (EAB)Tree Removal & Replacement Contract 
4. Leaf Collection Contract 
5. Cochran Engineering Supplement Agreement – Groby (STP) Project  
6. Groby 2025 STP Grant Application 

 
K. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT   (vote required) 

1. Employee Recognition Awards (Flood Relief Efforts) 
 

L. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 none 
  

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 

Monday, October 10, 2022 
6:30 p.m. 

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


Page 2 of 2 
 

 
M. NEW BUSINESS 

Resolutions   (vote required) 
1. Res 2022-12 – Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Budget Amendment #4 

Bills   (Introduction and 1st reading - no vote required) 
2. Bill 9487– AN ORDINANCE VACATING AND SURRENDERING A PUBLIC WALKWAY BETWEEN 511 

and 519 WESTVIEW DRIVE. 
 

3. Bill 9488 – AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR PHASE II  OF THE 
PROPOSED MARKET AT OLIVE  DEVELOPMENT LOCATED AT 8630 OLIVE BOULEVARD. 

 
N. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

 
O. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

 
P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Q. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) Legal actions, causes 
of action or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential or privileged communications 
between a public governmental body or its representatives or attorneys  

 
R. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
The public may also observe via: 
Live Stream via YouTube: 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ 
 
 
Updated 7th day of October 2022. 
LaRette Reese 
City Clerk, MRCC 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ


 

Page 1 of 15 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA 
 

A.  MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
At the Regular Session of the City Council of University City held on Tuesday, September 27, 
2022, Mayor Terry Crow called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 
B. ROLL CALL 

In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present:  
   Councilmember Stacy Clay 
   Councilmember Aleta Klein 
   Councilmember Steven McMahon 
   Councilmember Jeffrey Hales 
   Councilmember Tim Cusick; (excused) 
   Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 
 

Also in attendance were City Manager, Gregory Rose; City Attorney, John F. Mulligan, Jr.;  Director 
of Planning & Zoning, Dr. John Wagner, and Amanda Truemper of Trivers. 

 
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Mayor Crow made a motion that in conjunction with Bill Number 9486, the John Ferry report be 
made open to the public and available for distribution tomorrow. 
 

Councilmember Hales moved to approve the amendment, it was seconded by Councilmember 
Clay, and the motion was carried unanimously. 
 
Councilmember McMahon moved to approve the Agenda as amended, it was seconded by 
Councilmember Klein, and the motion was carried unanimously. 
 

D. PROCLAMATIONS 
1. Extra Mile Day - A Proclamation declaring November 1, 2022, as Extra Mile Day.  A day 

urging each individual to not only go the extra mile in his or her own life but to also 
acknowledge those who are inspirational in their efforts and commitment to making the 
world a better place.   

2. Leo Bressler 100th Birthday - A Proclamation extending sincere congratulations and best 
wishes for a very happy birthday. 

 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. September 12, 2022, Study Session Minutes; (Fire Department Dispatch Services), was 
moved by Councilmember Hales, it was seconded by Councilmember Clay, and the motion 
was carried unanimously. 

2. September 12, 2022, Regular  Meeting Minutes was moved by Councilmember Clay, it was 
seconded by Councilmember Klein, and the motion carried unanimously, with the exception 
of Councilmember Smotherson, who was not in attendance. 

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 

Tuesday, September 27, 2022 
6:30 p.m. 

E - 1 - 1



 

Page 2 of 15 
 

 
F. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

 None. 
 

G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
 None. 
 

H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION  
Request to Address the Council Forms are located on the ledge just inside the entrance.  Please 
complete and place the form in the basket at the front of the room. 
 
Written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting.  Comments may be sent 
via email to:  councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  
Such comments will be provided to City Council prior to the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official 
record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting.  
 
Please note, when submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also note whether 
your comment is on an agenda or a non-agenda item.  If a name and address are not provided, the comment will not 
be recorded in the official record. 
 
Judi Myers, 1169 Burch Lane, U City, MO 
Ms. Myers stated she learned of the FEMA buyout from the press, which stated that 12 out of 
the 19 homes on Burch Lane had been selected for this program.  The first issue is that this 
indiscriminate selection does not seem to fairly represent all of the homes that were impacted 
by the flood.  And secondly, it creates a fairly blighted neighborhood for those remaining 7 
homes.  Therefore, she is curious to know what the criterion was for selecting these 12 homes.  
  Ms. Myers stated there also needs to be some accountability on the part of MSD.  Most of 
the people on her block experienced sewer backups that caused severe damage.  And while we 
can agree that these storm waters were biblical, had these sewers been cleaned out it could 
have minimized some of the losses. 
 
Mayor Crow stated typically, Council does not answer questions during this session, and while 
he will agree with the need for accountability by MSD, the Director of Planning & Zoning or the 
City Manager will get back to you with an answer on the selection process. 
 
Don Fitz, 6954 Dartmouth, U City, MO 
Mr. Fitz stated he was a victim of the flood and sustained roughly $100,000 in damage from the 
7 1/2 feet of water that destroyed everything in his basement.  Yet, the only thing he could find in 
the way of assistance was FEMA because while the County Assessor might provide residents 
with a minute reimbursement, there are no radical adjustments to compensate for these 
devastating losses.   
 He stated as a Green Party Candidate for the County Assessor's office in November, he 
started thinking about the impact this and future floods can have on the County's revenue, and 
the need to come up with new and creative ideas to address this issue.  One thing he 
discovered was an article printed in the Post Dispatch on August 28th, which devised a negative 
assessment adjustment that provides major financial support for people whose homes are 
damaged by these historic events.  Mr. Fitz stated the Assessor can also work with other 
agencies to address the impact of climate change, which he believes will be strongly connected 
to the County's assessment problems. 

 
Mayor Crow informed citizens who signed up to speak on Bills 9485 and 9486 that they would be 
allowed to speak when these Bills are called up for a vote. 
 

I. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
1. 2022 Annual Property Tax Rates 

 
Mayor Crow opened the Public Hearing at 6:42 p.m., and after acknowledging that all written 
comments had been provided to Council, the hearing was closed at 6:42 p.m. 

E - 1 - 2

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


 

Page 3 of 15 
 

 
2. Easement Vacation – Brisco Place; (Bill 9476) 

 
Mayor Crow opened the Public Hearing at 6:42 p.m., and after acknowledging that all written 
comments had been provided to Council, the hearing was closed at 6:43 p.m. 

 
3. Easement Vacation – Barby Lane – South of Delmar; (Bill 9477) 

 
Mayor Crow opened the Public Hearing at 6:43 p.m., and after acknowledging that all written 
comments had been provided to Council, the hearing was closed at 6:43 p.m. 

 
4. Easement Vacation – McKnight Place South of Delmar; (Bill 9478) 

 
Mayor Crow opened the Public Hearing at 6:43 p.m., and after acknowledging that all written 
comments had been provided to Council, the hearing was closed at 6:43 p.m. 

 
5. Easement Vacation – Elmore Court; (Bill 9479) 

 
Mayor Crow opened the Public Hearing at 6:44 p.m., and after acknowledging that all written 
comments had been provided to Council, the hearing was closed at 6:44 p.m. 

 
6. Easement Vacation – Orchard Court; (Bill 9480) 

 
Mayor Crow opened the Public Hearing at 6:44 p.m., and after acknowledging that all written 
comments had been provided to Council, the hearing was closed at 6:44 p.m. 

 
7. Easement Vacation – Richard Court; (Bill 9481) 

 
Mayor Crow opened the Public Hearing at 6:44 p.m., and after acknowledging that all written 
comments had been provided to Council, the hearing was closed at 6:44 p.m. 

 
8. Proposed Development Plan for the Delmar Blvd. Redevelopment Area; (Bill 9486) 

 
Mayor Crow opened the Public Hearing at 6:44 p.m., and after acknowledging that all written 
comments had been provided to Council, the hearing was closed at 6:45 p.m. 

 
9. Liquor License – Nobu Restaurant; (6523 Delmar Blvd.) 

 
Mayor Crow opened the Public Hearing at 6:45 p.m., and after acknowledging that all written 
comments had been provided to Council, the hearing was closed at 6:45 p.m. 
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA 
1. Ratification of Emergency Purchases due to Flooding 
2. Liquor License – Nobu Restaurant (6523 Delmar Blvd.) 
3. Westgate Ave. Supplement Agreement 
 

Councilmember Hales moved to approve Items 1 through 3 on the Consent Agenda, it was 
seconded by Councilmember McMahon, and the motion was carried unanimously. 
 

K. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT - (vote required) 
1. Annex Trinity Update - Trivers 

Mr. Rose stated this is a presentation by Amanda Truemper on the Annex/Trinity Update. 
 

Ms. Truemper stated Trivers has completed the construction documents and applied for a permit, 
with no significant changes in the design.   

E - 1 - 3



 

Page 4 of 15 
 

 
So, this is primarily a financial update based on what their cost-estimating team has determined for 
completion of the scope of work required for the Annex +Connector, Trinity buildings, Police, and 
Courts. 
 
Renovations 

• New Main Entry point for the City Hall Campus 
• Development of New Entries and detailing at Annex + Connector  
• Restoration of remaining historic architectural features in the Annex and Trinity buildings 
 Material Selections  
 Restoration of the third-floor skylight at Annex 

• Accessible entries and security checkpoints for the Annex Connector and Trinity buildings at 
new public front entries; new elevator for the Trinity Building 
 Elevator variance GRANTED by the State of Missouri for existing Annex elevator which 

was too small for ADA accessibility 
• Updated/added restrooms to meet accessibility requirements 
• A one-stop window for public-facing City Hall services in the Connector; amenities in the 

Connector to support Community Programs 
• Structural retrofit as required for essential services 
 Annex Seismic Retrofit is priced as an alternate for cost visibility 

 
Site Improvements 

• Removal of temporary police structures; (by others) 
• Secure parking areas for police parking and sally port 
 Secure fence perimeter reduced, and fence type revised 

• New Public and Accessible Parking and drop-offs, entry plazas, and landscaping 
• New generator for Police Facility 

 
Current Cost Estimates 
 

 
 
 

• Estimates based on drawings dated August 5, 2022, through the beginning of September 
• Escalation assumes a construction start date of Fall 2022 
• Drawings Complete, no longer carrying Design Contingency 
• Recommend Owner/Construction Contingencies   
• FFE not included** see OFOI equipment estimates 
• Design fees not included 

E - 1 - 4



 

Page 5 of 15 
 

Compared to design development; 
• The total project cost increased by 1.9 million dollars 
• Site work decreased as a result of the updated fencing and constraints 
• The Annex increased by 1.7 million dollars 
• Trinity Building increased by $340,000 
• The estimated cost of construction is 23 million dollars 

 
Escalation of Specific Design Items Due to Supply Chain Climate 

• Steel volatility 
• Detention Truss Walls ($1.2M installed, vendor pricing) 
 The suspicion is that they are pricing this in a super volatile market with an installer 

purchase date that is out in the future.  This price does not prohibit Trivers from 
competitively bidding this out to other manufacturers 

• Repointing; tuckpointing allowance for both buildings will be determined as the work 
progresses - defined, 50% (+165K) 

• Mechanical final detailing, routing, and controls design 
• Electrical power/data final distribution and backup power UPS requirements 
• Dry-pipe sprinkler system for critical infrastructure areas (Annex) 
• Site Work reduced secure fence extents and type of fencing 

 
Summary of Construction Cost Estimates 
(Comparison from Schematic Design(SD) to Design Development (DD) to Construction 
Documents) 

• Approximate 9% increase in the DD estimate 
• Approximate 8.5% increase from DD to CD estimate  

 
Ms. Truemper stated these estimates are trending with the way inflation is trending, causing each 
line item; Annex, Trinity, Site work, and Seismic Retrofit, to fluctuate.  However, one thing that 
occurs in the construction documents phase is to remove owner contingencies from the cost so that 
now they are only looking at design change contingencies; which usually come down as you 
develop.  Trivers' recommendation is that the City includes some contingencies for working on 
historic structures and other complex factors, for example, 10% for construction and 2% for 
complexity.  
 
Excluded Costs 

• Furniture/fixtures  
• Shooting range 
• Bradford storage solutions 
• X-ray scanners and metal detectors  
• Removal of the play structures 
• Seismic retrofit; an alternate item 

  
Next Steps:  Bidding and Construction  
Moving through approvals & contracting processes  
SEPTEMBER 2022 

- Building Permits – signed/sealed sets submitted 8/31 
- 9/27 City Council Meeting  
 Site Development Plan Approval 
 City Council Budget Update 

- City Solicitation for Bidder Pre-Qualification and/or Bids 
 Generally, when you do a Pre-Qualification process you get more competitive bids and 

help to narrow the field 
 
 
 

E - 1 - 5



 

Page 6 of 15 
 

OCTOBER 2022 
- Procurement 
 Bidding & Contractor Selection 
 Value Engineering Considerations 
 Contract Award & Financing 

Additional consulting recommendations - (FY2024) 
- Way-finding Scope 
- Furniture Fixtures & Equipment Scope (FFE, OFOI needs assessment) 

 
Project Schedule 

- Regular Meeting Schedule 
a) Construction OACs, TBD  

- Bidding & Construction – 9/2022 thru 2023/24 
a) Building Prep/Move-out & Abatement + Related Capital Improvement Projects 
b) Permitting – 9/2022 
c) Bidding + Contractor Selection – 9/2022-10/2022 
d) Construction Begins – 10/2022 

- Final Completion** – 12/2023 (**Estimate Phase I) 
 
Councilmember Clay asked Ms. Truemper if she saw a light at the end of the tunnel related to 
these escalating costs?  Ms. Truemper stated there are indicators that things could be slowing 
down, which could be helpful within the bidding climate.  And volatility is also starting to decrease 
as the country gets a better handle on inflation.  However, over the past few years, nothing she has 
seen could have ever been anticipated, so the best thing to do is to go on record and say that she 
simply does not know. 
 
Mayor Crow thanked Ms. Truemper for her presentation. 
 
Mr. Rose stated the next step will be to move forward with the bidding process.  And at that point, 
the City will have a much clearer picture of what the actual costs will be.   
 

2. Site Plan Review and Approval for the University City Annex and Trinity Building renovation 
(SPR 22-03). 
Mr. Rose state staff is recommending that Council consider the approval of a Site Plan for 
the U City Annex and Trinity Building renovations. 
 

Dr. Wagner stated what is before Council is the Site Plan, Landscape Plan, and architectural 
renderings.  These items were reviewed by the Historic Preservation Commission on March 17th; 
the project as a whole, and July 28th, to determine the plan's adherence to the 1985 Civic Plaza 
Historic District Master Plan.  The Commission unanimously determined that the plan was in 
compliance with the Master Plan.   
 Dr. Wagner stated since the design of the fence is yet to be determined, is not a part of this 
approval process. 
 
Councilmember McMahon moved to approve the Site Plan, it was seconded by Councilmember 
Klein, and the motion was carried unanimously, with the exception of Councilmember Smotherson. 
  

3. Conditional Use Permit at 7001 Olive Boulevard – (CUP 22-07) temporary food truck 
operation. 
Mr. Rose stated staff is recommending that Council consider an application for a Conditional 
Use Permit.  The purposed use is for a temporary food truck to be operated at 7001 Olive 
Boulevard in the General Commercial District. 
 

Dr. Wagner stated Ms. Thompson initially purchased this building with the intent to operate a 
restaurant but quickly determined that the size of the building would not be conducive for that 
endeavor.  Thereafter, she decided to demolish the building and construct a new one.   

E - 1 - 6



 

Page 7 of 15 
 

In the interim, she would like to get a jump-start on her business and has requested that she be 
allowed to operate a food truck on the site.  He stated in speaking with Mr. Mulligan, they both 
determined that a Conditional Use Permit would be the best way to proceed with this request.   
 Dr. Wagner stated the application was discussed at the last Planning Commission meeting, 
wherein several conditions; which can be found on page 4 of the Council's report, have been 
included in their recommendation.  
 
Councilmember Smotherson asked how the truck would be configured on the lot, and whether it 
would be paved?  Resident Latoya Thompson of 6538 Crest Avenue stated the demolition was just 
completed and she has not talked to the engineers to see whether paving will be required.  
Councilmember Smotherson thanked Ms. Thompson for purchasing this lot and asked if she would 
keep Council updated on her progress.  
 
Councilmember Smotherson moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Clay, and the 
motion was carried unanimously.  

 
L. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

1. Bill 9476 - AN ORDINANCE VACATING AND SURRENDERING THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OF 
BRISCOE PLACE.  Bill Number 9476 was read for the second and third time. 
 

Councilmember McMahon moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Smotherson. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Klein, Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember Hales, Councilmember 
Clay, Councilmember Smotherson, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 
 

2. Bill 9477 – AN ORDINANCE VACATING AND SURRENDERING A PORTION OF THE 
BARBY LANE RIGHT-OF-WAY.  Bill Number 9477 was read for the second and third time. 
 

Councilmember Klein moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Smotherson. 
 

Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember Hales, Councilmember Clay, Councilmember 
Smotherson, Councilmember Klein, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 

 
3. Bill 9478 – AN ORDINANCE VACATING AND SURRENDERING A PORTION OF 

MCKNIGHT PLACE RIGHT-OF-WAY.  Bill Number 9478 was read for the second and third 
time. 
 

Councilmember McMahon moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Hales. 
 

Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Hales, Councilmember Clay, Councilmember Smotherson, Councilmember 
Klein, Councilmember McMahon, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 

 
4. Bill 9479 – AN ORDINANCE VACATING AND SURRENDERING THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OF 

ELMORE COURT.  Bill Number 9479 was read for the second and third time. 
 

Councilmember Smotherson moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Clay. 
 
Councilmember Smotherson stated there seems to be one resident remaining in their home, so he 
would like to make sure that there are no residents living on Elmore Court once this action is taken.   

E - 1 - 7



 

Page 8 of 15 
 

Dr. Wagner stated he does not believe there are any residents on this street, however, he will 
consult with U City, LLC to make sure that is correct. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Smotherson, Councilmember Clay, Councilmember Klein, Councilmember 
McMahon, Councilmember Hales, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 
 

5. Bill 9480 – AN ORDINANCE VACATING AND SURRENDERING THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OF 
ORCHARD COURT.  Bill Number 9480 was read for the second and third time. 
 

Councilmember Smotherson moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Klein. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Smotherson, Councilmember Clay, Councilmember Klein, Councilmember 
McMahon, Councilmember Hales, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 
 

6. Bill 9481 – AN ORDINANCE VACATING AND SURRENDERING THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OF 
RICHARD COURT.  Bill Number 9481 was read for the second and third time. 
 

Councilmember McMahon moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Clay. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Clay, Councilmember Klein, Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember 
Hales, Councilmember Smotherson, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 
 

7. Bill 9482 – AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL PLAT FOR A MAJOR SUBDIVISION 
OF A TRACT OF LAND TO BE KNOWN AS “MARKET AT OLIVE PLAT 4".  Bill Number 
9482 was read for the second and third time. 
 

Councilmember Smotherson moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Klein, Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember Hales, Councilmember 
Smotherson, Councilmember Clay, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 
 

8. Bill 9483 – AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL PLAT FOR A MINOR SUBDIVISION 
OF A TRACT OF LAND TO BE KNOWN AS “ADJUSTED LOT 7” IN MARKET AT OLIVE 
PLAT 3R.  Bill Number 9483 was read for the second and third time. 
 

Councilmember Klein moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Hales. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember Hales, Councilmember Smotherson, 
Councilmember Clay, Councilmember Klein, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 
 

9. Bill 9484 – AN ORDINANCE APPROVING ARIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION PLAT FOR A 
PORTION OF TRINITY AVENUE, NORTH OF DELMAR BOULEVARD, ADJACENT TO 
THE CITY HALL CIVIC COMPLEX.  Bill Number 9484 was read for the second and third 
time. 
 

Councilmember Hales moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon. 
E - 1 - 8



 

Page 9 of 15 
 

 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Hales, Councilmember Smotherson, Councilmember Clay, Councilmember 
Klein, Councilmember McMahon, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 
 

10. Bill 9485 – AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI 
TO ISSUE ITS TAXABLE INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS (DELMAR BOULEVARD 
REDEVELOPMENT AREA PROJECT), SERIES 2022, IN A PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $90,000,000, FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING FUNDS TO PAY THE 
COSTS OF ACQUIRING, CONSTRUCTING AND IMPROVING A FACILITY FOR AN 
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECT IN THE CITY; APPROVING A PLAN FOR THE 
PROJECT; AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO ENTER INTO CERTAIN AGREEMENTS 
AND TAKE CERTAIN OTHER ACTIONS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH.  Bill Number 
9485 was read for the second and third time. 
 

Councilmember McMahon moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Hales. 
 
Citizen's Comments 
Grace Collins, 8841 Washington Avenue, U City, MO 
Ms. Collins stated although she was not a victim of the recent floods and is a little confused by 
some of the changes made to these plans, she strongly believes that the needs of those residents 
who were impacted should take precedence over the building of a luxury apartment building.  She 
stated while she understands that this will bring revenue to the City, at this point in time, other 
things need to take priority, like maintaining the fire and police departments, City Hall renovations, 
and residents who will not be able to recoup all of their losses. 
 
Attorney Robert Preston, 1 Brentwood Blvd., Clayton, MO 
Mr. Preston stated his client, Charles Deutsch & Company, asked him to attend tonight's meeting 
to thank members of the public that supported his project and expound on some of the reasons 
why they did.   
 This project was carefully designed in accordance with good zoning practices and is 
consistent with the City's Master Plan that specifically designates this parcel for redevelopment.  
The belief is that it will create an ideal buffer between the single-family residences located in this 
area and the highway; especially in light of the numerous iterations that have been made, all 
prompted by staff and residents.  He stated this is an 87.5-million-dollar development, with 2.5 
million going straight to public infrastructure.  Therefore, the Developer also believes that this will 
be a good long-term investment for the community.  
 Mr. Preston stated that based on an in-depth financial review of the developer's project 
finances conducted by a third-party consultant; which will be made available to the City, the five-
year tax abatement incentive is what makes this project financially feasible.  That report was 
conducted a year ago, and since that time prices have skyrocketed, which makes the need for an 
incentive even more pertinent.  But keep in mind that the abatement only applies to net new taxes.  
This means all existing taxes paid to individual taxing districts like the School District, etc., will 
continue to receive taxes at their current levels throughout the entire abatement period.  And 
pursuant to State law, there is no abatement on taxes paid to first responders.  At the end of the 
abatement period, the entire project goes back on the City's tax roll, and the expectation is that the 
per annum rate will equate to roughly $530,000; which would quickly pay off the value of this 
abatement.   
 
In addition, at the request of the Planning Commission the Developer has agreed to insert a claw-
back provision into the contract to ensure that if at any time during the abatement period the project 
is sold, a portion of the abatement received will be paid back to the City.   
 Mr. Preston stated he would remain available to answer any questions and hopes that 
Council will accept staff's recommendation to approve Bills 9485 and 9486. 
 

E - 1 - 9



 

Page 10 of 15 
 

Tom Sullivan, 751 Syracuse, U City, MO 
Mr. Sullivan stated this 3.5-million-dollar subsidy seems like an abuse of the State's Chapter 100 
provision that is supposed to be an incentive for projects that might not otherwise get considered.  
But in this case, it seems more like a giveaway to a very connected Developer, Charles Deutsch, to 
build luxury apartments at a reduced cost for him and his company.   
 Mr. Deutsch has held the best buddy status at City Hall for a long time.  He made a $2,000 
contribution to the campaign for Proposition F; a proposed sales tax increase that would raise the 
cost of almost every purchase made in U City; a $500 contribution to Mayor Crow's campaign and 
was a big proponent of the School District selling the McNair Building to Torah Prep; as was Mayor 
Crow.  These are just a few examples of how U City politicians represent the interest of developers 
rather than what's best for its residents.  And now, Mr. Deutsch wants a big tax break for himself.  
But an ethical politician would not take contributions from a developer seeking approval on various 
projects within their jurisdiction.  So, I think Mayor Crow should recuse himself from this vote. 
 The attorney for Torah Prep was Gerry Greiman, another buddy and campaign donor to 
Mayor Crow.  And of course, Mayor Crow reciprocated by contributing to Gerry's wife's campaign.  
But that's what friends are for.  And to top it off, this year Mr. Greiman became the head of the TIF 
Commission which considered part of the 700-million-dollar subsidy for Costco.  And even though 
he is no longer the attorney for Torah Prep, to most of the world this would still be considered a 
conflict of interest, but in U City it's business as usual.   
 Mr. Sullivan stated U City is already number one in the state when it comes to income and 
equality, and number nine in the country.  And because a large segment of the City's population will 
not be able to afford these big luxury apartments where some rents will be almost $50,000 a year, 
this development will only exacerbate those statistics.  
 Mr. Sullivan stated it used to be that honest government was something taken for granted 
here in U City, but as we've seen with Costco and Proposition F, those days are long gone.  He 
stated there is no need for the Avenir to be subsidized because it's located in a desirable 
neighborhood.  And you can almost be certain that this subsidy won't equate to lower rents for 
Avenir's tenants.  Therefore, he thinks the proposed subsidy should be rejected. 
 
William Ash, 8690 West Kingsbury Avenue, U City, MO 
Mr. Ash stated although residents residing in adjoining neighborhoods did have a lot of input on the 
zoning intent, access into their neighborhoods, and the potential for congestion caused by traffic, 
Bills 9485 and 9486 requesting the issuance of 90 million dollars in industrial bonds and tax 
abatements are new.  They arrived on Council's September 12th Agenda with just three days of 
public notice, meticulously detailed and ready for signatures.  There was no Council discussion or 
reference to their desire to garner any comments from citizens.  So why are these Bills only now 
being considered after the Developer has already rendered the buildings unlivable and ready for 
demolition?  Citizens need to know that its City officials and members of Council are transparently 
sharing the process.  They also need confirmed assurance that their administration is making 
financial decisions based on the community's priorities.  They deserve an explanation of who was 
involved in crafting these Bills; how they came to be placed on the agenda, and why they should be 
approved?   
 Mr. Ash stated that based on the City's calculations the proposed five-year tax abatement will 
total 2.185 million dollars; money that the Developer retains, and the City is being deprived of.  That 
amount could cover the cost of buying the 24 flooded homes in the Hefner Court Apartments or go 
towards the firefighter's pension fund.  Should we still be moving forward with spending 2.2 million 
to remodel the old library to move City Council's chambers, or renovating the Annex for the Police 
Department?  And weren't all of the City's trash trucks damaged by the flood?  Yet, all we have is 
the Developer's assurance that the tax abatement is necessary.   
 
Shouldn't they be required to reveal the total operational projections over time so that they can be 
independently assessed and discussed?  Their construction budget includes inflated land costs of 
over 12.5 million dollars.  However, the appraised value; per the Developer's submittal to the 
Planning Commission was less than 2.84 million.  This appears to indicate that he is using the 
higher figure to support the need for abatement, and the lower figure for his tax basis over the next 
eight years.   

E - 1 - 10



 

Page 11 of 15 
 

But according to a written comment submitted by Architect Asim Thakore, the Developer could 
tweak his rent structure to cover the 2.3% of the project costs that the abatement represents. 
 Mr. Ash stated he understands the essential and difficult roles of Council, and thanks each 
member for their service.  And he believes that tax abatement during the construction phase or 
maybe reduced taxes for the first year while tenants are being on-boarded would seem reasonable.   
 
But moving forward, full financial reporting, an independent review, and public discussions for all 
developers wanting tax abatements should be required.  He would also suggest that Council create 
a task force to examine best practices for city governments that is empowered to publically 
recommend changes necessary for greater transparency and accountability to the citizens of U 
City.     
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Smotherson, Councilmember Clay, Councilmember Klein, Councilmember 
McMahon, Councilmember Hales, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 
 

11. Bill 9486 – AN ORDINANCE DESIGNATING A CERTAIN TRACT OF LAND IN THE CITY 
OF UNIVERSITY CITY AS A BLIGHTED AREA; APPROVING THE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
FOR THE DELMAR BOULEVARD REDEVELOPMENT AREA; APPROVING A 
DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION WITH THE 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN; AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO ENTER INTO CERTAIN 
AGREEMENTS AND TAKE CERTAIN OTHER ACTIONS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH.  
Bill Number 9486 was read for the second and third time. 
 

Councilmember McMahon moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Hales. 
 
Mayor Crow asked the previous speakers if they would like to make comments on this Bill?  (Each 
speaker declined to do so.) 
 
Councilmember Hales stated he would forward these comments to the City Clerk and ask that they 
be attached to the minutes.  
 The Avenir Development began as all projects do, going before the City's citizen-led Planning 
Commission, which he has had the privilege of serving on for about three years.  This is one of the 
most demanding commissions on which citizens volunteer to serve, often with agenda packets 
exceeding 100 pages, and meetings that typically last over three hours.  They are an incredibly 
dedicated group of citizens that volunteer countless hours serving this community that actually 
reviewed all eleven of these items under tonight's Unfinished Business segment.  Yet sadly, 
questions regarding the transparency of this process have been raised, which he would like to 
address.  Councilmember Hales stated he has conducted a lot of research on this issue, looking at 
previous developments under prior administrations, and could not find an instance where the 
process has been remotely as transparent as this one has.   
 This project first appeared on the Planning Commission's August 26, 2020 agenda where 
they reviewed and approved the Preliminary Development Plan and a twenty-year tax abatement; 
the first ten years at 100% and the last ten years at 50%.  Public notice and written comments were 
received for each of the following meetings that were either held in person or virtual. 
 

•  August 26, 2020   Planning Commission 
•  September 29, 2020  City Council  
•  October 12, 2020  City Council 
•  October 26, 2020  City Council 
•  November 9, 2020  City Council 
•  June 14, 2021   City Council 
•  December 15, 2021  Planning Commission 
•  January 26, 2022  Planning Commission 
•  February 23, 2022  Planning Commission 

E - 1 - 11



 

Page 12 of 15 
 

•  March 13, 2022   City Council 
•  March 28, 2022   City Council 
•  March 31, 2022   Planning Commission 
•  April 11, 2022   City Council 
•  April 25, 2022   City Council 
•  July 25, 2022   City Council 

 
•  July 27, 2022   Planning Commission 
•  September 12, 2022  City Council 
•  September 27, 2022  City Council 

 
In addition to these eighteen public meetings, the Kingdel Neighborhood organized three Zoom 
meetings in the fall of 2020 with its residents, as well as Councilmember McMahon, and myself; 
October 29, 2020, November 5, 2020, and November 9, 2020. 
Each of those meetings lasted more than two hours, and the last meeting included the City 
Manager, City Attorney, and the Director of Planning & Development.  Staff and Council listened to 
the concerns voiced by residents, wherein they were approved and outlined in a 2022 Resolution.    

•  That the drive-through coffee shop be replaced with an in-store only shop;  
•  That the setbacks to the adjacent neighborhood be increased;  
•  That an entire floor be removed from the southern leg of the development located adjacent 

to the neighborhood;  
•  That all construction parking and access to and from the neighborhood be restricted; 
•  That construction hours be limited to a stop time of 7 p.m.; 
•  That there be a dog waste station and signage located at building exits; 
•  That parking be prohibited on the east side of Kingdel; 
•  That the access from Kingdel to the courtyard be restricted for emergencies only; 
•  That all illuminations from exterior lighting be contained within the property lines;  
•  That all trees on the east curb of Kingdel be protected during construction and, 
•  That the setback along Kingdel be landscaped as depicted in the Developer's Landscape 

Plan 
 
Councilmember Hales stated the City has a policy within its Comprehensive Plan that provides 
guidance for abatements, which states that they should not exceed eight years.  However, in 2013 
and 2021 the Land Clearance Redevelopment Authority granted a ten-year abatement to Mansions 
on the Plaza and the Vanguard Apartments.  And in 2015 they granted a five-year abatement for 
the second phase of Mansions.   
 Councilmember Hales stated this has been a very lengthy process, and after much 
discussion, deliberation, analysis, and public input, he believes this project will provide a long-term 
benefit to the City.  And as one of his constituents wrote on NextDoor, "In the life of the City a five-
year abatement really is a blip".  So, as this project moves forward, he would like everyone to keep 
in mind that the Developer does not receive any money from the City and that all this abatement 
amounts to is a deferral of the increase once the project is completed, which is an almost five-fold 
increase of its revenues in year six and beyond.   
 Additionally, as it relates to the public comments, please know that they are appreciated and 
that they have all been read and given consideration.  But at the end of the day, the comments in 
opposition to this project were not even close to those that were in support, which totaled sixty-two.  

 
Councilmember McMahon thanked Councilmember Hales for providing such a thorough summary 
of this project's history.  
 When this project was initially proposed, some residents in the adjoining neighborhood asked 
Council to stop it, and now as the City is putting in the last pieces of the puzzle, their argument is 
that they do not believe the developer needs this abatement in order to move forward.  Thus, one 
might wonder if these residents actually believe the abatement is unnecessary or if they're hoping 
that the developer does need it, and the elimination of this abatement will stop the entire project.   
 

E - 1 - 12



 

Page 13 of 15 
 

Councilmember McMahon stated while he does not know the answer to that question, what he 
does know is that if this project stops, these same neighbors won't have to look far to see the old 
Lutheran Services Building that has now become a vacant lot or their property values start to 
decrease, because these buildings are no longer livable.  And vacant lots will also equate to the 
City experiencing a decrease in its revenue for several years. 
 The City has analyzed this as assistance to bring in almost 90 million dollars of new 
construction in an area that has been deemed as needing to be developed and improved.   
 
And as a result of the City's goal to balance the interest of the commercial property owner; the 
Developer, and those of its residential property owners, there were lots of compromises reached.  
Councilmember McMahon stated he thinks everyone worked well together to reach those 
compromises and the result is a very good project that in time, will have a profound impact on the 
City's revenues. 
 So, he thinks it is in the best interest of the City to move forward rather than speculate and 
risk the possibility of these properties remaining vacant and becoming a liability to the City.  And 
that is certainly not a risk he is willing to take when they have been presented with such a viable 
option. 
 
Councilmember Klein stated she carefully tried to consider all of the comments she received and 
appreciated the undertaking by one resident to share her views on why she is supporting this 
project because communications are a key component of transparency.  She stated that she would 
like to emphasize the fact that she is on the Council to represent and support the best interests of 
this community and believes that all of her colleagues are equally as committed.  As a result, she 
has found working on this Council to be a great experience. Councilmember Klein then read the 
remaining portion of her comments into the record: 
 "I support this abatement first and foremost because I think this project will greatly benefit our 
City as a whole.  Because we didn't yet have a policy in place to determine what a reasonable 
abatement would be for this kind of project, we hired an independent consultant to advise us.  
Based on his assessment we offered a five-year abatement that Council believed would be 
mutually beneficial.  
 Some in the community believe that this abatement gets funding from the City's budget that 
could be used for other projects to help the developer offset some of his expenses.  This is not the 
case.  There is no fund that the City is taking from to give to the developer that could be used on 
floodplain buyouts or City services.  The City is also not losing a tax revenue stream that it would 
otherwise have.  Abatement only provides relief from future taxes on improvements to the property.  
Prior tax assessments for the property are still in place, so the City will continue to receive the 
same revenue stream during construction and abatement.  In other words, nothing changes during 
the year of construction and abatement period.  But after five years it is projected that the City will 
receive up to five times the property tax revenue stream for that property.   
 Some in the community have expressed concern about revenue streams for the School 
District and Library.  My understanding, based on the figures I was provided is that right now from 
that property the Library gets $25,784, and the School District gets $326,364.  During the 
abatement, the Library and School District will receive that same amount.  After five years the 
Library will get $128,677, and the School District will get 1.590 million dollars.  So based on these 
projections, and the revenue stream that will come into our community after five years, I think this is 
a huge burst for the City and the services it provides.  Not only will the City benefit from the 
increased property taxes, but this higher density housing will also mean more state and federal 
dollars in the future, and an increase in sales taxes from more residents' spending money in U City.  
Increased revenue means better services, improved schools, and more development 
opportunities." 
  
 Councilmember Klein stated she thinks another benefit is the fact that the Developer has 
been a long-time partner in this community with a history of successful developments, and he has 
remained faithful to this project despite the cost increases that have occurred over the past two 
years.  Therefore, she is also in support of Chapter 100. 
 

E - 1 - 13



 

Page 14 of 15 
 

Councilmember Clay stated he is supportive of this project partly because of the idea of having new 
development within U City.  This Council has been aggressive in trying to build out more 
businesses to support the City's tax base.  And while U City will always primarily remain a 
residential community, the reality is that as costs steadily continue to increase his role and every 
member's role has been to try and keep those burdens as far away from individual residents as 
possible.  Welcoming businesses into the community and sharing these tax burdens, serves 
everyone.   
 He stated the City's population is declining, and the conundrum associated with a declining 
population in an older community is the ability to continue maintaining streets and roads at a certain 
standard.   
Ten people living on a street provide more revenue to maintain those standards than five people.  
So, what Council is attempting to do is offset the reality of a decline in its population and revenues 
with new developments and businesses that will generate those needed funds. 
 Councilmember Clay stated although he has not been intimately involved in this specific 
project, all of these things matter in his role as a representative of this City.  So, to that extent, he 
will be voting in favor of the abatement because he believes that Council has to think about how to 
offset costs in its old and aging City.  This is one way to do that, and while it may not be perfect, 
you cannot allow the perfect to be the enemy of the good.     
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Clay, Councilmember Klein, Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember 
Hales, Councilmember Smotherson, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 
 

 
M. NEW BUSINESS 

Resolutions - (vote required) 
 

1. Res 2022-10– 2022 Annual Property Tax Rates. 
 

Councilmember McMahon moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Hales, and the 
motion was carried unanimously. 
 

2. Res 2022-11– Declaring Certain Property Tax Revenues to Be Surplus. 
 
Councilmember McMahon moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Klein, and the 
motion was carried unanimously. 
  

Bills - (Introduction and 1st reading - no vote required) 
  None. 
 

N. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 
1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 

Councilmember McMahon reported that at the last Parks Commission meeting a presentation 
was made regarding a proposal being brought forth by folks with strong ties to the City 
regarding the basketball courts.  He stated it was an exciting proposal to enhance the City's 
recreational facilities that will be presented again at an upcoming Study Session.   
 
 
Councilmember Hales reported that there will be another Planning Commission meeting 
tomorrow at 6:30 p.m., and the link for this meeting can be found on the City's website. 
 
Councilmember Clay reported that while the Library is undergoing renovations everyone can 
still take advantage of many of its services at the new location, 6900 Delmar.  

E - 1 - 14



 

Page 15 of 15 
 

 
Councilmember Smotherson congratulated and thanked the Arts & Letters Commission on 
another great concert season which ended last Sunday.  He stated he is looking forward to 
their new season which will start in June of next year. 

 
3. Boards, Commissions, and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

 
O. COUNCIL COMMENTS  

Mayor Crow stated it was a fun weekend to be in U City, and he had the opportunity to visit the 
Farmer's Market's Petting Zoo, as well as the Concert in the Park.  Here is an update on some of 
the other things going on: 

•  Costco has scheduled its grand opening for October 25th.  Anyone interested in joining 
should look for their tents located all around St. Louis. 

•  Dirt is moving at Olive and North & South for Quik Trip  
•  Nobu's has relocated to The Loop  
•  Next weekend is U City In Bloom's Art Fair 

 

P. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) Legal 
actions, causes of action, or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential 
or privileged communications between a public governmental body or its representatives or 
attorneys. 
 

Councilmember Hales moved to close the Regular Session and go into a Closed Session, it was 
seconded by Councilmember McMahon. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Klein, Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember Hales, Councilmember 
Smotherson, Councilmember Clay, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 
 

Q. ADJOURNMENT   
Mayor Crow thanked everyone for their attendance and closed the Regular City Council meeting 
at 7:56 p.m. to go into a Closed Session on the Second floor.  The Closed Session reconvened 
in an open session and adjourned at 8:40 p.m. 
 

 
LaRette Reese 
City Clerk, MRCC 

E - 1 - 15





E - 1 - 16



E - 1 - 17



E - 1 - 18



E - 1 - 19



E - 1 - 20



E - 1 - 21



E - 1 - 22



E - 1 - 23



E - 1 - 24



E - 1 - 25



E - 1 - 26



E - 1 - 27



E - 1 - 28



E - 1 - 29



E - 1 - 30



E - 1 - 31



E - 1 - 32



E - 1 - 33



E - 1 - 34



E - 1 - 35



E - 1 - 36



E - 1 - 37



E - 1 - 38



E - 1 - 39



E - 1 - 40



E - 1 - 41



E - 1 - 42



E - 1 - 43



E - 1 - 44



E - 1 - 45



E - 1 - 46



E - 1 - 47



E - 1 - 48



E - 1 - 49



E - 1 - 50



E - 1 - 51



E - 1 - 52



E - 1 - 53



E - 1 - 54



E - 1 - 55



E - 1 - 56



E - 1 - 57



E - 1 - 58



E - 1 - 59



E - 1 - 60



E - 1 - 61



E - 1 - 62



E - 1 - 63



E - 1 - 64



E - 1 - 65



E - 1 - 66



E - 1 - 67



E - 1 - 68



E - 1 - 69



E - 1 - 70



E - 1 - 71



E - 1 - 72



E - 1 - 73



E - 1 - 74



E - 1 - 75



E - 1 - 76



E - 1 - 77



E - 1 - 78



E - 1 - 79



E - 1 - 80



E - 1 - 81



E - 1 - 82



E - 1 - 83



E - 1 - 84



E - 1 - 85



E - 1 - 86



E - 1 - 87



E - 1 - 88



E - 1 - 89



E - 1 - 90



E - 1 - 91



E - 1 - 92



E - 1 - 93



E - 1 - 94





I - 1 - 1



I - 1 - 2



J - 1- 1



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Brandy L. Douglas, LLC 

This Agreement, dated as of  October 11, 2022, is by and between University City Fire 
Department (“CLIENT”), and Brandy L. Douglas, LLC (“CONSULTANT”), hereinafter 
collectively referred to as the “Parties.”  The Agreement will be effective upon final execution by 
all parties. 
1. HEADINGS

Headings herein are for convenience of reference only and shall in no way affect 
interpretation of the Agreement.

2. EXHIBITS
Exhibits A and B are attached hereto and included by reference.

3. CONSULTANT’S SCOPE OF SERVICES AND CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES 
CONSULTANT agrees to perform all services described in Exhibit A, Scope of Work, 
for payment pursuant to Exhibit B, in accordance with the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement.  CLIENT shall provide complete, accurate, and timely information regarding 
CLIENT’S requirements and shall designate by name a representative authorized to act 
on its behalf. CLIENT shall examine documents or other instruments submitted by 
CONSULTANT and shall promptly render any decisions necessary in order to avoid 
unreasonable delay. CLIENT shall provide any additional materials, other than those 
CONSULTANT is responsible to provide, that are reasonably necessary to complete 
the Scope of Work. CLIENT shall provide reasonable access to any locations under the 
control of CLIENT required for CONSULTANT to perform the services hereunder. Any 
additional requirements will be identified in Exhibit A.

4. TERM
This Agreement shall terminate on October 11, 2025, unless extended by mutual 
Agreement of the Parties in writing or terminated in accordance with Section 16.

5. PAYMENT
For all services performed in accordance with the Agreement, payment shall be made to 
CONSULTANT as provided in Exhibit B.

6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
No relationship of employer and employee is created by this Agreement. It is 
understood and agreed that CONSULTANT is, at all times, an independent contractor 
and can perform work for others. CONSULTANT is not the agent or employee of the 
CLIENT in any capacity whatsoever and CLIENT shall not be liable in any manner for 
any acts or omissions by CONSULTANT or for any obligations or liabilities incurred by 
CONSULTANT, its employees, or agents.
CONSULTANT shall have no claim under this Agreement or otherwise, for seniority, 
vacation time, vacation pay, sick leave, personal lime off, health insurance medical 
care, hospital care, retirement benefits, social security, disability, workers' 
compensation, or unemployment insurance benefits, civil service protection, or 
employee benefits of any kind.

J - 1- 2



CONSULTANT shall be solely liable for, and obligated to pay directly, all applicable 
payroll taxes (including federal and state income taxes) or contributions for 
unemployment insurance or old age pensions or annuities which are imposed by any 
governmental entity in connection with the labor used or which are measured by wages, 
salaries or other remuneration paid to its officers, agents, or employees, and 
CONSULTANT agrees to indemnify and hold CLIENT harmless from any and all liability 
which CLIENT may incur because of CONSULTANT's failure to pay such amounts. 

In carrying out the work contemplated herein, CONSULTANT shall comply with all 
applicable federal and state workers' compensation and liability laws and regulations with 
respect to the officers, agents and/or employees conducting and participating in the work; 
and agrees that such officers, agents, and/or employees will be considered as 
independent contractors and shall not be treated or considered in any way as officers, 
agents and/or employees of CLIENT. 

7. INDEMNIFICATION
To the fullest extent permitted by law, each Party shall release, hold harmless, defend
and indemnify the other from and against any and all claims, losses, damages, lawsuits,
liabilities and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys' fees, including but not
limited to those attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, death or to injury to or
destruction of property, including the loss therefrom, which arises out of or is any way
connected with the performance of this Agreement (collectively "Liabilities") to the extent
caused by such Party, except where such Liabilities are caused by the sole negligence or
willful misconduct of any indemnitee.

8. CONFORMITY WITH LAW AND SAFETY
In performing services under this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall observe and comply
with all applicable laws, ordinances, codes and regulations of governmental agencies,
including federal, state, municipal, and local governing bodies, having jurisdiction over the
scope of services provided by CONSULTANT.

9. TRAVEL EXPENSES
CONSULTANT shall be allowed and compensated for reasonable travel expenses to
carry out the work of the CLIENT as approved in advance by the CLIENT in accordance
with Exhibit B.

10. TAXES
Payment of all applicable federal, state and local taxes shall be the sole responsibility of
the CONSULTANT.

11. ACCESS AND RETENTION OF RECORDS
CONSULTANT agrees to provide the CLIENT and its designees access to all of the
CONSULTANT’s records related to this contract and that the CONSULTANT shall
maintain its records related to this contract for a period of not less than five (5) years after
the final payment to the CONSULTANT is made by the CLIENT.

12. CONFLICT OF INTEREST
CONSULTANT covenants that CONSULTANT presently has no interest, and shall not
obtain any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the
performance of services required under this Agreement, including but not limited to any
provision of services to any federal, state or local regulatory or other public agency which

J - 1- 3



has any interest adverse or potentially adverse to the CLIENT, as determined in the 
reasonable judgment of the CLIENT. Entering into this agreement does not preclude 
CONSULTANT from working for others as long as CONSULTANT ensures that such 
work does not constitute a conflict of interest. 

13. CONFIDENTIALITY
CONSULTANT agrees that any information, whether proprietary or not, made known to
or discovered by CONSULTANT during the performance of or in connection with this
Agreement for the CLIENT will be kept confidential and not be disclosed to any other
person or entity except as required by law. CONSULTANT agrees to immediately notify
the CLIENT if CONSULTANT is requested to disclose to others any information made
known to or discovered by CONSULTANT during the performance of or in connection
with this Agreement.

14. USE OF CLIENT PROPERTY
CONSULTANT shall not use CLIENT property (including equipment, instruments, and
supplies) or personnel for any purpose other than in the performance of its obligations
under this Agreement.

15. TERMINATION
Either party may terminate this Agreement for default upon five (5) days written notice to
the other if the other party has substantially failed to fulfill any of its obligations under this
Agreement in a timely manner as provided herein. CLIENT has and reserves the right to
terminate this Agreement at its convenience and without cause upon thirty (30) days
written notice to CONSULTANT. In the event that the CLIENT should terminate this
Agreement for its convenience, CONSULTANT shall be entitled to payment for services
provided hereunder, as provided in Exhibit B, including for such services performed prior
to the effective date of said termination, including travel, accrued as of the date of the
termination, which payment shall be per the terms set forth in Exhibit B.

16. CHOICE OF LAW
CONSULTANT and CLIENT agree that if a dispute arises in the performance of this
agreement the laws of the State of Missouri will govern.

17. ENTIRE AGREEMENT
This Agreement, including all attachments, exhibits, and any other documents specifically
incorporated into this Agreement, shall constitute the entire agreement between CLIENT
and CONSULTANT relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. As used herein,
Agreement refers to and includes any documents incorporated herein by reference and
any exhibits or attachments.

This Agreement supersedes and merges all previous understandings, and all other
agreements, written or oral, between the Parties and sets forth the entire understanding
of the Parties regarding the subject matter thereof. The Agreement may not be modified
except by a written document signed by both Parties.

This Agreement and all related obligations and services hereunder are intended for the
sole benefit of CLIENT and CONSULTANT and are not intended to create any third-party
rights or benefits.

J - 1- 4



18. MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT
This Agreement may be supplemented, amended, or modified only by the mutual
agreement of the Parties. No supplement, amendment, or modification of this Agreement
shall be binding unless it is in writing and signed by authorized representatives of both
Parties.

19. SEVERABILITY
If any part of this Agreement or the application thereof is declared to be invalid for any
reason, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions of this Agreement which can
be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions
of this Agreement are deemed severable.

20. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS
This agreement is binding upon and inures to the benefit of the successor, executors,
administrators, and assigns of each party to this agreement, provided, however, that
CONSULTANT shall not assign or transfer by operation of law or otherwise any or all
rights, burdens, duties, or obligations without prior written consent of the CLIENT. Any
attempted assignment without such consent shall be invalid.

21. NOTICES
All notices, requests, demands, or other communications under this Agreement shall be
in writing. Notices shall be given for all purposes as follows:

Personal delivery: When personally delivered to the recipient, notices are effective on
delivery.

First Class Mail: When mailed first class to the last address of the recipient known to the
party giving notice, notice is effective three (3) mail delivery days after deposit in a United
States Postal Service office or mailbox.

Certified Mail: When mailed certified mail, return receipt requested, notice is effective on
receipt, if delivery is confirmed by a return receipt.

Overnight Delivery: When delivered by overnight delivery (Federal
Express/Airborne/United Parcel Service/DHL Worldwide Express) with charges prepaid
or charged to the sender's account, notice is effective on delivery, if delivery is confirmed
by the delivery service.

Addresses for purpose of giving notice are as follows:

To: CLIENT: University City Fire Department 
Attn: Deputy Chief Gary Wilmoth 
863 Westgate Avenue  
University City, MO 63130 

To: CONSULTANT: Brandy L. Douglas, LLC 
2302 Eisenbath Rd. 
O’fallon, MO 63366 

J - 1- 5



Any correctly addressed notice that is refused, unclaimed, or undeliverable because of an act or 
omission of the party to be notified shall be deemed effective as of the first date that said notice 
was refused, unclaimed, or deemed undeliverable by the postal authorities, messenger, or 
overnight delivery service. 

Any party may change its address by giving the other party notice of the change in any manner 
permitted by this Agreement. 

22. SIGNATORIES
By signing this agreement, signatories warrant and represent that they have executed
this Agreement in their authorized capacity.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day
and year written.

CLIENT      CONSULTANT
University City Fire Department   Brandy L. Douglas, LLC

By: _________________________ 
 Signature 

Name: Brandy Douglas 
Title: Principal / Managing Partner 

By: _________________________ 
  Signature 

Name: Mr. Gregory Rose
Title:  City Manager  
Date: ________________ Date: ________________ 

J - 1- 6



EXHIBIT A 
Scope of Services 

 
GROUND EMERGENCY MEDICAL TRANSPORTATION CONSULTING RESPONSIBILITIES  
 
CONSULTANT shall provide consulting services to the CLIENT as follows:  
 
• CONSULTANT shall annually prepare the cost report that CLIENT submits to the State of 
Missouri in order for the CLIENT to participate in the State’s GEMT Program. CONSULTANT 
shall prepare the cost reports in accordance with all federal, state, or municipal laws or 
regulations. 
 
• CONSULTANT shall provide CLIENT with the cost report and all supporting documentation 
(financial data will be delivered as a flat file, i.e., Excel, Access, or text file) to the agreed upon 
email address.  It shall be the CLIENT’S responsibility to file the cost report with the State of 
Missouri.  CLIENT shall meet CONSULTANT’s established deadlines for data submission and 
document reviews. 
 
• As part of the fee set forth in this Exhibit, CONSULTANT shall provide CLIENT with four  
hours of audit assistance post submittal, either in person (if the audit is conducted onsite) or 
through telephone/e-mail (if the audit is a desk audit).  Travel expenses will be billed to CLIENT 
as set forth in Exhibit B. 

 
• There shall be a cap of 65 hours per cost report and 4 hours of audit assistance post-
submittal, unless extended by mutual agreement of the parties. 
 
• Any programs, projects, or additional work beyond the 65-hour cap per cost report or 4-hour 
cap for audit assistance post-submittal will be negotiated on a project basis cost by the parties 
or at $400.00 per hour. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J - 1- 7



EXHIBIT B 
Payment Terms 

 
A. SCHEDULE  

Services to be performed under this Agreement will begin at the time the Agreement is 
executed. 
 

B. TRAVEL  
Related travel expenses such as airfare, hotel, and meals will be billed at actual cost and will 
be approved by the CLIENT prior to travel. Mileage will be billed at the current IRS 
reimbursement rate. 
 

C. TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT  
Services under the contract provided by the CONSULTANT shall be completed for a fee of 
$7,000 plus 2.5% of gross GEMT proceeds per report year, for a term of three (3) years.  
The fee schedule referenced herein shall remain unchanged for the term of the contract. 
 
Invoices for payment will be provided to the CLIENT upon the completion of the cost report, 
to the address provided under the contract.  Payment will be due within thirty (30) days of 
invoice postmark.  It will be the CLIENT’S responsibility to notify CONSULTANT of any 
changes to the name and/or address on record for the purposes of invoicing.  
 

D. ADDITIONAL SERVICES  
Any requests for services beyond the scope of services set forth in Exhibit A shall be billed at 
the rate of Four Hundred dollars ($400.00) per hour or a negotiated fixed cost for special 
projects. Performing any services under this provision requires prior written approval of both 
parties. 

 
Contact information for billing purposes is as follows: 

 
CLIENT:  University City Fire Department 

Attn: Deputy Chief Gary Wilmoth 
863 Westgate Avenue 
University City, MO 63130 

 
Phone number: (314) 505-8594 
Email address: gwilmoth@ucitymo.org 

 
CONSULTANT: Brandy L. Douglas, LLC 
   2302 Eisenbath Rd.  
   O’fallon, MO 63366 
 
   Phone number: (636) 236-7365      
   Email address: bdouglascpa@outlook.com 

J - 1- 8



























J - 3 - 1



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY,  MISSOURI       Emerald Ash Borer Project 
 

9/22 SECTION 1.6 1 of 3 
 CONTRACT 
 

CONTRACT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made as of the ______ day of _________________ , 20___, by and  
between The City of University City, MISSOURI (here in after called the CITY) and Omni Tree 
Service, Inc. ,a Missouri Company with offices at 415 Old State Road, Ellisville, MO 63021 
(herein after called the CONTRACTOR), WITNESSETH, that whereas the CITY intends to 
proceed with Project No. PRF23-03 – Emerald Ash Borer – Tree Replacement Program 
Contract, hereinafter called the PROJECT, in accordance with the Specifications and Contract 
Documents prepared by the City of University City. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, The CITY and CONTRACTOR for the considerations hereinafter set forth, 
agree as follows: 
 
THE CONTRACTOR AGREES to furnish all the necessary labor, materials, equipment, tools 
and services necessary to perform and complete in a workmanlike manner all work required for 
the PROJECT, in strict compliance with the Contract Documents herein mentioned, which are 
hereby made a part of the Contract. 
 
a. Contract Time:  Work under this Agreement shall be commenced upon written Notice to 

Proceed and shall be completed within one hundred (100) calendar days of the 
authorization date in the Notice to Proceed. 

b. Liquidated Damages: The Contractor hereby expressly agrees to pay the City the sum of 
two hundred dollars ($200.00) per day for each and every day, Sundays and legal holidays 
only excepted, after calendar days have expired during or upon which said work, or any part 
thereof remains incomplete and unfinished. 

c. Subcontractors: The Contractor agrees to bind every subcontractor by the terms of the 
Contract Documents. The Contract Documents shall not be construed as creating any 
contractual relation between any subcontractor and the City.  No subcontractor shall further 
subcontract any of their work. 

 
THE CITY AGREES to pay, and the Contractor agrees to accept, in full payment for the 
performance of this Contract, the amount as stipulated in the Proposal, which is: 
 

Seventy-Four Thousand Nine Hundred Fifteen  Dollars 
  

($74,915.00)   
 
Final dollar amount will be computed from actual quantities/services provided as verified by the 
Director of Parks, Recreation and Forestry and in accordance with the unit prices set out in the 
Proposal. 
 
(See following pages) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J - 3 - 2



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY,  MISSOURI       Emerald Ash Borer Project 
 

9/22 SECTION 1.6 2 of 3 
 CONTRACT 
 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: 
 
The Contract comprises the Contract Documents as bound herein.  In the event that any 
provision of one Contract Document conflicts with the provision of another Contract Document, 
the provision in that Contract Document first listed below shall govern, except as otherwise 
specifically stated: 
 

A. Contract (This Instrument) 
B. Addenda to Contract Documents 
C. Conditions of the Contract 
D. Remaining Legal and Procedural Documents 

1. Proposal 
2. Instruction to Bidders 
3. Invitation for Bids 

E. Job Special Provisions 
F. Bonds/Attachments 

1. Performance/Payment Bond 
2. Bid Bond 

 
AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PARKS, RECREATION AND FORESTRY 
DIRECTOR: 
 
All work shall be done under the general inspection of the Director of Parks, Recreation and 
Forestry or his designee.  The Director of Parks, Recreation and Forestry or his designee shall 
decide any and all questions which may arise as to the quality and acceptability of materials 
furnished, work performed, and rate of progress of work, interpretations of specifications and all 
questions as to the acceptable fulfillment of the Contract on the part of the Contractor. 
 
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: 
 
This Agreement and all of the covenants hereof shall insure to the benefit of and be binding 
upon the City and Contractor respectively and their partners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives.  Neither the Owner nor the Contractor shall have the right to assign, transfer, or 
sublet their interests or obligation hereunder without consent of the other party. 
 
The Contract contains a binding arbitration provision that may be enforced by the parties. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement: 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
Attest: 
 
 
Title: _______________________________________________________________ 
  
By (signature): _______________________________________________________  
 
Contractor (print): ______________________________________________________ 
 
Date: ___________________________________________ 

J - 3 - 3



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY,  MISSOURI       Emerald Ash Borer Project 
 

9/22 SECTION 1.6 3 of 3 
 CONTRACT 
 

 
(SEAL) 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
By: _____________________________             
                   City Clerk 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
Date: __________________________                                                     
 
 
         
 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY              CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 
 
 
 
By: ____________________________   By: ____________________________                                                                                                                                                          
                   City Attorney      City Manager 
 
Date: __________________________   Date: __________________________ 
                                                                                               

J - 3 - 4



www.ucitymo.org 
 

   Department of Public Works and Parks 
  6801 Delmar Boulevard, 3rd Floor, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8619, Fax: (314) 862-0694 

 
 

Recommendation 

Emerald Ash Borer PRF23-03  
 
To: Darren Dunkle-Deputy Director of Parks and Forestry 
 
From: Jacob Kaiser- Forestry Supervisor 
 
 
I am recommending that Omni Tree Service be granted the Emerald Ash Borer 

removal and replacement contract with the items below removed from the base bid.  

ADDRESS STREET SIDE ONSTR DBH Price 

7452 Ahern Ave Front Ahern Ave 15 $1,010.00 

7471 Amherst Ave Front Amherst Ave 18 $1,370.00 

7411 Chamberlain Ave Front Chamberlain Ave 38 $2,070.00 

7342 Dorset Ave Front Dorset Ave 22 $1,280.00 

7356 Dorset Ave Front Dorset Ave 20 $1,470.00 

6818 Etzel Ave Front Etzel Ave 34 $2,810.00 

6610 Olive Blvd Front Olive Blvd 20 $1,760.00 

7031 Pershing Ave Front Pershing Ave 19 $1,260.00 

7200 Shaftesbury Ave Front Shaftesbury Ave 12 $960.00 

8015 Stanford Ave Front Stanford Ave 12 $960.00 

524 Trinity Ave Side Private Rd 12 $1,010.00 

524 Trinity Ave Side Trinity Ave 13 $1,010.00 

524 Trinity Ave Side Trinity Ave 13 $1,010.00 

524 Trinity Ave Side Trinity Ave 17 $1,130.00 

524 Trinity Ave Side Trinity Ave 22 $1,130.00 

421 W Point Ct Front W Point Ave 17 $1,290.00 

360 W Point Ct Side University Dr 10 $840.00 

6683 Washington Ave Side Kingsland Ave 20 $1,480.00 

7431 Washington Ave Side W Point Ave 10 $840.00 

7375 Westmoreland Dr Front 
Westmoreland 
Dr 19 $1,430.00 

      
   Original Bid Price  $101,035.00 

   
Total amount 
removed  $26,120.00 

   
Total contract 
price  $74,915.00 

 

  

J - 3 - 5



EAB PROJECT 

BID TABULATION 9/20/22 

COMPANY BASE BID BID BOND 

 Omni Tree Service, Inc. $101,035.00 X 

 Looks Great of MS $114,220.00 X 

 Gamma Tree Experts $114,350.00 X 

THE CITY INTENDS TO AWARD THE BID TO THE MOST RESPONSIVE, RESPONSIBLE BIDDER SUBMITTING THE LOWEST BEST BID.  
THE CITY RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REJECT ANY AND ALL BIDS, AND TO WAIVE ANY IRREGULARITIES IN THE BEST INTEREST OF 

THE CITY. 

J - 3 - 6



J - 4 - 1



 CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI                                           Leaf Collection Services  
 

22-24 SECTION 1.6 1 of 3 
 CITY CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 
 

CITY-CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made as of the ______ day of _________________ , 20___, by and  
between The City of University City, MISSOURI (here in after called the CITY) and Hendel 
Lawncare, Inc., a Missouri Company with offices at 7109 Robbins Avenue, St. Louis, Missouri 
63133 (herein after called the CONTRACTOR), WITNESSETH, that whereas the CITY intends 
to proceed with the Leaf Collection Services Contract, hereinafter called the Work, in 
accordance with the Specifications and Contract Documents prepared by the City of University 
City. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, The CITY and CONTRACTOR for the considerations hereinafter set forth, 
agree as follows: 
 
THE CONTRACTOR AGREES to furnish all the necessary labor, materials, equipment, tools 
and services necessary to perform and complete in a workmanlike manner all work required for 
the WORK, in strict compliance with the Contract Documents herein mentioned, which are 
hereby made a part of the Contract. 
 
a. Contract Time:  Work under this Agreement shall be commenced upon written Notice to 

Proceed and shall be completed per the time schedule identified in the Scope of Work. 
 

b. Subcontractors: The Contractor agrees to bind every subcontractor by the terms of the 
Contract Documents. The Contract Documents shall not be construed as creating any 
contractual relation between any subcontractor and the City.  No subcontractor shall further 
subcontract any of their work. 

 
THE CITY AGREES to pay, and the Contractor agrees to accept, in full payment for the 
performance of this Contract, the amount as stipulated in the Proposal. 
 
Final dollar amount will be computed from actual quantities/services provided as verified by the 
Director of Public Works and in accordance with the unit prices set out in the Proposal. 
 
 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: 
 
The Contract comprises the Contract Documents as bound herein.  In the event that any 
provision of one Contract Document conflicts with the provision of another Contract Document, 
the provision in that Contract Document first listed below shall govern, except as otherwise 
specifically stated: 
 

A. City-Contractor Agreement (This Instrument) 
B. Addenda to Contract Documents 
C. Invitation To Bid 
D. Bid Proposal 

 
AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR: 
 
All work shall be done under the general inspection of the Director of Public Works or his 
designee.  The Director of Public Works or his designee shall decide any and all questions 
which may arise as to the quality and acceptability of materials furnished, work performed, and 

J - 4 - 2



 CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI                                           Leaf Collection Services  
 

22-24 SECTION 1.6 2 of 3 
 CITY CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 
 

rate of progress of work, interpretations of specifications and all questions as to the acceptable 
fulfillment of the Contract on the part of the Contractor. 
 
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: 
 
This Agreement and all of the covenants hereof shall insure to the benefit of and be binding 
upon the City and Contractor respectively and their partners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives.  Neither the City nor the Contractor shall have the right to assign, transfer, or 
sublet their interests or obligation hereunder without consent of the other party. 
 
The Contract contains a binding arbitration provision that may be enforced by the parties. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement: 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
Title: _______________________________________________________________ 
  
By (signature): _______________________________________________________  
 
Contractor (print): ______________________________________________________ 
 
Date: ___________________________________________ 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
By: _____________________________             
                   City Clerk 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
Date: __________________________                                                     
 
 
         
 
 
 

J - 4 - 3



 CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI                                           Leaf Collection Services  
 

22-24 SECTION 1.6 3 of 3 
 CITY CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 
 

 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY              CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 
 
 
 
By: ____________________________   By: ____________________________                                                                                                                                                          
                   City Attorney      City Manager 
 
Date: __________________________   Date: __________________________ 
                                                                                               

J - 4 - 4



J - 4 - 5



J - 4 - 6



CITY OF UNI VERSITY CITY 

6801 DELMAR BLVD. 

UNIVERSITY CITY, MO. 63130 

(314) 862-6767

October 5, 2021 

INVITATION TO BID 

The City of University City will be accepting bids for Leaf Collection Services for the period of November 1, 2021 through 
December 31, 2021, in the Finance Department-Purchasing Office, 6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Mo. 63130, until 5:00 
p.m., October 19, 2021.  The City reserves the right to reject any and all bids or parts of bids, to waive any technicalities and to
accept the bid that in its judgment, best meets the requirements of the City of University City.  The award will be made subject
to the approval of City Council.

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS 

1. It is the intent of this solicitation to obtain competitive prices from contractors for leaf collection services.

2. The contractor’s fee shall be on a per hour basis and include all equipment and labor.

3. The contractor shall provide all necessary equipment, a leaf vacuum, sweeper (if needed) and dump trucks.
 Dump trucks used to collect leaves from the vacuums will have a minimum capacity of 25 cubic yards.

4. The contractor shall provide a minimum of three (3)  leaf vacuuming units including a dump truck, vacuum system and
operators. The City may require a fourth unit to be used during heavy leaf collection.

5. The contractor shall provide all tools and maintenance for their equipment and shall not be paid for equipment and
labor down time.

6. Leaf collection activities shall take place along the curb line of streets designated by the Street Divisions supervisory
personnel and includes raking leaves from the tree lawn and from around parked cars.

7. The contractor shall provide a minimum of three (3) employees, a driver and two (2) vacuum system operators, for each
leaf collection unit. The contractor will provide backup equipment and personnel in case of breakdowns within a
reasonable amount of time.

8. Contractor will maintain an accurate log of cubic yards of leaves collected and dumped, hours of operation collecting
leaves, miles traveled, and down time. The contractor shall provide the City with a copy of such record upon request.

9. The contractor will observe a regular eight (8) hour work day from 7:00 a.m. to 3:30 p.m., Monday through Friday.
Evening and weekend work may be required at the discretion of the City. The hourly rate paid the contractor will
remain the same regardless of regular, evening or weekend hours.

10. Time will begin for each contractor unit upon arrival of the crew and equipment at the Street Division’s office located
at 1015 Pennsylvania Ave., and end when the unit's last load of the day is dumped at the Ruth Park Recycling Area
or as designated by City supervisory personnel.

11. The contractor shall collect leaves in all types of weather except for lightning and severe snow and /or ice at the City’s
discretion.

12. The City will provide a starting date for leaf collection and the contractors shall work for as long as needed. The initial
year will begin in the fall of 2021 and run through December 2021.

13. The City will provide the dump site within the City limits.
J - 4 - 7



 
BID REQUIREMENTS 

 

In the performance of this work, the successful bidder obligates himself not to discriminate on the grounds or because of 
race, creed, color, national origin or ancestry, and religion or lack thereof against any employee of or applicant for 
employment with the successful bidder.  The successful bidder further obligates himself to include a provision similar to 
the foregoing in all subcontracts let or awarded by the successful bidder. 
 
The successful bidder must submit a Certificate of Insurance indicating the minimum coverage of the policy for the 
duration of the contract before the contract may begin. 
 
The contractor shall provide leaf  co l lec t ion  serv i ces  for  a  per iod  of  th ree  (3)  year s  a t  ra te s  per  hour  as  
indica ted  on  th i s  b id  response .  
  
Prevailing wage will be paid to all employees under this contract.  A payroll report may be requested by the City while 
work is performed under th i s  contract. 
 
All technical questions regarding this solicitation should be addressed to John Gates, (314) 505-8585. 
 
Questions regarding any administrative concerns of this solicitation can be addressed to Timika Lewis, (314) 505-8551. 
 
Please seal your bid in an envelope mark the outside Leaf Collection 10/19/2021 

  

J - 4 - 8



BID FORM 
 

To: City of University City 

The following bid for Leaf Collection Services is being submitted in response to your Invitation to Bid dated October 4, 
2021. 
 
Leaf Collection-Rate Per Hour 
 
1st Year  Fall-December 2021 $ _______________ 

2nd Year Fall-December 2022 $ _______________ 

3rd Year  Fall-December 2023 $ _______________ 

 

EXCEPTIONS: 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PLEASE CHECK IF BUSINESS IS: MINORITY OWNED ___ WOMAN OWNED___  
Minorities and females in work force assigned to carry out this contract: ____%  
 
ITEM(S) BID ARE UNITED STATES MANUFACTURED, ASSEMBLED AND/OR PRODUCED: YES___ NO___  
If "NO", please indicate which item(s) are foreign manufactured, assembled and/or produced.  
 

ALL STATE AND CITY TAXES DUE HAVE BEEN PAID: YES___ NO___  

Company     

Address     

City   State  Zip  

Company Phone   Fax  

Quoted By   Title  

Signature   Date  

Email   Federal I.D. Number  

Terms     

J - 4 - 9



 

J - 4 - 10



J - 5 - 1



University City/Cochran       - Page 1 -          Supplemental Agreement #11 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT #11 –  

LUMP SUM PROPOSAL 

 
September 5, 2022 

 
This Supplemental Agreement is made part of the Contract dated October 16, 2020, and 
approved by the City on November 2, 2020, between the City of University City and 
Cochran for Professional Civil Engineering Services.  The purpose for this Lump Sum 
Proposal is to provide Professional Engineering Services for the Groby Road Resurfacing 
STP TAP Project.  In accordance with our previous discussions, we offer the following 
professional services: 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES: 
 

1. Grant Application Services – we will prepare and submit a grant application in 
the next round of STP solicitations, due February, 2023. The application shall be 
in accordance with scope of work identified on the attached cost estimate.  The 
application is a very detailed and involved process; here are some of the 
questions and information required on the application: 

 
a. Project map showing limits of improvements 
b. Written description of proposed project 
c. Description of how the project relates to surface transportation in terms of 

function, impact, and proximity. 
d. Discuss how the project enhances the overall transportation system 

network, complementing other improvements, providing linkages to transit 
and employment, improving network continuity, improving accessibility and 
safety, complete streets improvements, etc. 

e. Public involvement activities to obtain public and community support. 
f. Average daily traffic (ADT) counts 
g. Description of bicycle and pedestrian elements 
h. Detailed cost estimate 
i. Project implementation schedule 

 
2. Design and Bidding Phase – we will provide professional services necessary to 

produce a quality set of construction and bidding documents.  The scope will be 
in accordance with the attached cost estimate.  Tasks will include the following: 

  
a. Determine the needs of the City by meeting with City officials and 

representative interest groups.   
b. Conduct topographic, property and utility surveys sufficient to develop plans 

for the project. 
c. Develop preliminary plans and cost estimates and recommend to the City 

the best overall general design. 

J - 5 - 2



University City/Cochran       - Page 2 -          Supplemental Agreement #11 

d. Submit four copies of preliminary plans and estimates for review by the City 
and the Missouri Department of Transportation. 

e. Based on approvals of preliminary plans, prepare detailed construction 
plans, cost estimates, specifications and related documents as necessary 
for the purpose of soliciting bids for constructing the project. 

f. Ensure compliance with all regulations in regards to noise abatement and 
air quality, if necessary. 

g. Provide the City with five sets of completed plans, specifications and cost 
estimates for the purpose of obtaining construction authorization from the 
Missouri Department of Transportation. 

h. Upon receipt of construction authorization from MODOT, make final 
corrections resulting from reviews by agencies involved and provide plans, 
specifications, and bid documents to the City. 

i. Provide the City with a list of qualified area bidders and assist the City in 
advertising for bids. 

j. Assist the City in evaluating bids and requesting concurrence in award from 
MoDOT. 

 
3. Construction Phase - we will serve as the City’s representative for administering 

the terms of the construction contract between the City and their Contractor.  
Cochran will endeavor to protect the City against defects and deficiencies in 
workmanship and materials in work by the Contractor.  However, the furnishing of 
such project representation will not make Cochran responsible for the construction 
methods and procedures used by the Contractor or for the Contractor's failure to 
perform work in accordance with the contract documents.  Tasks will include the 
following: 

 
a. Provide the City with a list of qualified area bidders and assist in advertising 

for bids, distributing bid packages, pre-bid conference, addendums, and 
pre-bid questions from Contractors. 

b. Assist the City in opening and evaluating bids and requesting concurrence 
in award from MoDOT. 

c. Assist the City with a preconstruction conference to discuss project details 
with the Contractor. 

d. Make periodic site visits to observe the Contractor's progress and quality of 
work, and to determine if the work conforms to the contract documents.  It 
is contemplated that survey staking and layout will be accomplished by the 
contractor's forces.  We will accompany MoDOT and FHWA representatives 
on visits of the project site as requested. 

e. Check shop drawings and review schedules and drawings submitted by the 
Contractor. 

f. Reject work not conforming to the project documents. 
g. Prepare change orders for issuance by the City as necessary and assure 

that proper approvals are made prior to work being performed. 
h. Review wage rates, postings, equal employment opportunity and other 

related items called for in the contract documents. 

J - 5 - 3



University City/Cochran       - Page 3 -          Supplemental Agreement #11 

i. Inspect materials, review material certifications furnished by Contractor, 
sample concrete and other materials as required, and provide for laboratory 
testing of samples.   

j. Maintain progress diary and other project records, measure and document 
quantities, and prepare monthly estimates for payments due the Contractor. 

k. Be present during critical construction operations. 
l. Participate in final inspection, provide the City with project documentation 

(diaries, test results, certifications, etc.), and provide as-built plans for the 
City’s records. 

 
FEE: 

 
1. The total amount of fee to be paid for the “Grant Application Services” outlined in 

this proposal shall be a lump sum fee of $5,000.00.  We offer that if the application 
is not approved, we will reimburse the entire fee. 

 
2. If the grant is awarded by EWG, the total amount of fee to be paid for the “Design 

and Bidding Phase” outlined in this proposal shall be a lump sum fee of 
$99,308.00.   

 
3. The total amount of fee to be paid for the “Construction Phase” outlined in this 

proposal shall be a lump sum fee of $74,481.00.   
 
 
 
Supplement Agreement No. 11 accepted as defined herein: 
 
 
Sincerely, Acceptance: 
 University City 
 
 
 
Dave Christensen, P.E. By:       
Vice President  
  
 Title:       
 
  
  Date:       
 
 

J - 5 - 4



CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE

University City - Groby Road Resurfacing Project

Item 
No.

Item Description Unit
Plan 

Quantity
Unit Price ($) Total ($)

1 Mobilization LS 1 85,000.00 85,000

2 Partial Depth Pavement Repair SY 1,500 35.00 52,500

3 Pavement Milling SY 30,000 3.50 105,000

4 Asphalt Pavement Resurfacing TON 5,000 95.00 475,000

5 Misc Curb Repair LF 1,500 35.00 52,500

6 ADA Ramps SF 12,000 9.50 114,000

7 Pavement Striping LF 27,000 1.50 40,500

8 Construction Traffic Control LS 1 35,000.00 35,000

General Notes: Construction Totals 959,500

  1.  From McKnight Road to Olive Boulevard 15% Contingency 143,925

  2.  Approximate Length = 1.2 Miles STP Project Total = 1,103,425

  3.  Construction 2025 Federal Share @ 80% = 882,740

Local Share @ 20% = 220,685

EWGCC Application Fee (1/2% of Federal Funds Requested) = 4,414

 Design Engineering Services 99,308

Const. Admin./Inspection/Testing 74,481

$398,888

STP Application - Due February, 2023

City Expenditure (STP 20% Share + Eng. + App. Fee) =

 8/31/22 J - 5 - 5



J - 5 - 6



J - 6 - 1



CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE

University City - Groby Road Resurfacing Project

Item 
No.

Item Description Unit
Plan 

Quantity
Unit Price ($) Total ($)

1 Mobilization LS 1 85,000.00 85,000

2 Partial Depth Pavement Repair SY 1,500 35.00 52,500

3 Pavement Milling SY 30,000 3.50 105,000

4 Asphalt Pavement Resurfacing TON 5,000 95.00 475,000

5 Misc Curb Repair LF 1,500 35.00 52,500

6 ADA Ramps SF 12,000 9.50 114,000

7 Pavement Striping LF 27,000 1.50 40,500

8 Construction Traffic Control LS 1 35,000.00 35,000

General Notes: Construction Totals 959,500

  1.  From McKnight Road to Olive Boulevard 15% Contingency 143,925

  2.  Approximate Length = 1.2 Miles STP Project Total = 1,103,425

  3.  Construction 2025 Federal Share @ 80% = 882,740

Local Share @ 20% = 220,685

EWGCC Application Fee (1/2% of Federal Funds Requested) = 4,414

 Design Engineering Services 99,308

Const. Admin./Inspection/Testing 74,481

$398,888

STP Application - Due February, 2023

City Expenditure (STP 20% Share + Eng. + App. Fee) =

 8/31/22J - 6 - 2



K - 1 - 1





M - 1 - 1



General Fund:
Revenue Revenue 

Account Increase Decrease Description
Revenues

1) 4001 Real Property - Current 38,600        Increase in real property - current from St Louis
County.

2) 4010 Personal Property - Current 44,070        Increase in personal property - current from St Louis
County.  

3) 4020 Intangible Property 840             Increase in intangible property from St. Louis County

4) 4101 Local Use Tax 19,900        Increase in Use Tax; received more than anticipated

5) 4105 County Wide Sales Tax (pool) 699,200      Increase due to received more than anticipated during 
the time of budgeting; uncertainty of covid 

6) 4115 Fire Sales Tax (pt of sale) 176,000      Increase due to received more than anticipated during 
the time of budgeting; uncertainty of covid 

7) 4150 State Gas Tax 196,500      Increase due to increase in gas usage, in addition to a
$0.125 tax increase phased over 5 years which the State
started to collect in October 2021.

8) 4155 State Motor Vehicle Sales Tax 117,400      Increase due to received more than anticipated during 
the time of budgeting; budgeted conservatively.

9) 4160 County Road Fund 38,200        Increase due to higher proceeds from St. Louis County
than were anticipated.

10) 4301 Business Licenses 39,500        Increase in licenses due to aggressive approach in 
collecting the business licenses, in addition to new 
businesses in the City.

11) 4315 Dog Licenses & Redemption Fees 1,900          Increase in collecting of dog licenses and dog park tags.

12) 4401 Electric (121,000)      Decrease due to fluctuations in weather, rates, and usage.

13) 4405 Natural Gas 52,000        Increase due to fluctuations in weather, rates, and usage.

14) 4410 Water 37,100        Increase due to fluctuations in weather, rates, and usage.

15) 4415 Telephone (174,000)      Decrease due to fluctuations in weather, rates, and usage.

16) 4540 Ambulance Services 338,000      Increase due to received more than anticipated during 
the time of budgeting; budgeted conservatively.

17) 4610 Aquatics 27,800        Increase due to received more than anticipated during 
the time of budgeting; budgeted conservatively.

18) 4701 Parking Meter Collections (90,000)        Decrease in parking meters and fines due to not 
4703 Parking Fines (30,000)        collecting fees for parking along LOOP.

19) 4705 Court Fines (118,000)      Decrease due to defendants are not paying and not 
4710 Courts Costs (71,000)        appearing for court.

Change in Revenues - Increase 1,223,010     

FY22 Budget Amendment #4
To Be Approved by City Council

October 10, 2022

M - 1 - 2



General Fund:
Expenditure Expenditure

Account Increase Decrease Description
Expenditures

1) Legislative
01.10.02.6010 Professional Services (6,000)           Decrease in expenditures.  Funds to offset expenses
01.10.02.6720 Election Costs (32,000)         in Asst City Mgr / Communications Dept.
01.10.02.6400 Office Equipment Maintenance (1,000)           No impact to fund reserves.
01.10.02.6560 Technology Services (1,000)           
01.10.02.7090 Office & Computer Equipment (1,000)           

2) Asst City Manager's Office - Communications
01.12.04.5001 Salaries-Full Time 34,500         Increase due to hiring of Asst City Mgr/Communications
01.12.04.5460 Medical Insurance 1,900           position.  Funds to be offset from other funds within the 
01.12.04.5660 Social Security Contributions 2,100           department and Legislative.  No impact to fund reserves.
01.12.04.5740 Pension Contribution NonUniformed 11,600         
01.12.04.5900 Medicare 445             
01.12.04.6010 Professional Services 4,700           
01.12.04.6040 Events & Receptions 170             
01.12.04.6090 Postage (12,000)         
01.12.04.6110 Mileage Reimbursement (1,000)           
01.12.04.6130 Advertising & Public Notices (1,415)           

3) City Manager's Office
01.12.05.6010 Professional Services 10,800         Adjust expenditures for Professional and Legal Services,
01.12.05.6020 Legal Services 76,300         Temp Labor, and Prof Dev to better align with actual
01.12.05.6070 Temporary Labor 7,500           spending.  Funds to be offset within the City Mgr's Office
01.12.05.6120 Professional Development 2,300           and Police.  No impact to fund reserves.
01.12.05.5001 Salaries-Full Time (21,000)         
01.12.05.5740 Pension Contribution NonUniformed (11,000)         
01.12.05.6400 Office Equipment Maintenance (2,000)           
01.12.05.6610 Staff Training (2,000)           

4) Human Resources
01.14.07.5001 Salaries-Full Time 18,000         Adjust expenditures for Salaries Full Time, Prof Services,
01.14.07.6010 Professional Services 22,700         Disability Benefits and various accounts to better align 
01.14.07.6030 Medical Services (4,000)           with actual spending.  Funds to be offset by other funds
01.14.07.6035 Disability Benefits 1,400           within the HR Dept and Finance.
01.14.07.6050 Maintenance Contracts 2,600           No impact to fund reserves.
01.14.07.6070 Temporary Labor (1,000)           
01.14.07.6090 Postage (1,500)           
01.14.07.6120 Professional Development (3,300)           
01.14.07.6130 Advertising & Public Notices (3,000)           
01.14.07.6150 Printing Services (700)              
01.14.07.6220 Insurance - Public Officials (1,000)           
01.14.07.6600 Tuition Reimbursement (750)              
01.14.07.6700 Misc Operating Services 7,050           
01.14.07.7001 Office Supplies 1,800           
01.14.07.7090 Office & Computer Equipment (1,000)           
01.14.07.7330 Food (1,000)           
01.14.07.7650 Parking Meter Parts (4,500)           
01.14.07.7850 Awards & Gifts 2,900           

5) Finance
01.16.08.5001 Salaries-Full Time (18,000)         Increase in expenditures due to additional expenses
01.16.08.5460 Medical Insurance 9,500           that were not anticipated.  Funds to be offset by other
01.16.08.5660 Social Security Contributions (3,000)           funds within the Finance Dept and HR Dept.
01.16.08.6010 Professional Services (35,000)         No impact to fund reserves.
01.16.08.6090 Postage 3,000           
01.16.08.6400 Office Equipment Maintenance (2,000)           
01.16.08.6560 Technology Services 1,000           
01.16.08.6680 Subdivision Fees & Taxes 11,300         
01.16.08.6700 Misc Operating Services (1,500)           

FY22 Budget Amendment #4
To Be Approved by City Council

October 10, 2022

M - 1 - 3



General Fund:
Expenditure Expenditure

Account Increase Decrease Description
Expenditures

FY22 Budget Amendment #4
To Be Approved by City Council

October 10, 2022

6) Information Technology
01.18.11.5420 Workers Compensation 1,000           Increase in expenditures due to additional expenses
01.18.11.5460 Medical Insurance 300             that were not anticipated.  Funds to be offset by other
01.18.11.6010 Professional Services (1,300)           funds within IT Dept.
01.18.11.6050 Maintenance Contracts (16,500)         No impact to fund reserves.
01.18.11.6270 Telephone & Mobile Devices 16,500         
01.18.11.6320 Internet Services 1,300           
01.18.11.6400 Office Equipment Maintenance (2,500)           
01.18.90.8120 Computer Equipment 1,200           

7) Municipal Courts
01.20.14.5001 Salaries-Full Time 6,000           Adjust Salaries Full Time, Part Time, Overtime, Medical
01.20.14.5340 Salaries-Part Time & Temp 2,000           Insurance, Soc, Sec., and Technology Services to better
01.20.14.5380 Overtime 4,300           align with actual spending.  Funds to be offset by the 
01.20.14.5460 Medical Insurance 2,300           Police Dept.  No impact to fund reserves.
01.20.14.5660 Social Security Contributions 1,600           
01.20.14.6560 Technology Services 1,300           

8) Police
01.30.20.5001 Salaries-Full Time (409,550)       Adjust Salaries Full Time, Part Time, related expenditures,
01.30.20.5220 Injury Leave 5,700           and various other accounts to better align with actual 
01.30.20.5340 Salaries-Part Time & Temp (40,000)         spending.  No impact to fund reserves.
01.30.20.5380 Overtime 42,000         
01.30.20.5420 Workers Compensation 78,000         
01.30.20.5460 Medical Insurance (20,000)         
01.30.20.6050 Maintenance Contracts 7,500           
01.30.20.6120 Professional Development 3,000           
01.30.20.6150 Printing Services 4,200           
01.30.20.6260 Electricity (6,000)           
01.30.20.6280 Water 6,000           
01.30.20.6290 Sewer 3,700           
01.30.20.6380 Equipment Maintenance 1,900           
01.30.20.6400 Office Equipment Maintenance (35,000)         
01.30.20.6560 Technology Services 5,200           
01.30.20.6610 Staff Training (10,000)         
01.30.20.6680 Subdivision Fees & Taxes (3,500)           
01.30.20.7090 Office & Computer Equipment (7,000)           
01.30.20.7370 Institutional Supplies 5,300           
01.30.20.7530 Medical Supplies 1,100           
01.30.20.7570 Hardware & Hand Tools 14,000         
01.30.20.8200 Vehicles & Equipment (50,000)         
01.30.90.8200 Vehicles & Equipment 225,000       

M - 1 - 4



General Fund:
Expenditure Expenditure

Account Increase Decrease Description
Expenditures

FY22 Budget Amendment #4
To Be Approved by City Council

October 10, 2022

9) Fire
01.35.25.5001 Salaries-Full Time (30,000)         Adjust Salaries Full Time, Part Time, related expenditures,
01.35.25.5340 Salaries-Part Time & Temp (28,750)         and various other accounts to better align with actual 
01.35.25.5380 Overtime 162,600       spending.  No impact to fund reserves.
01.35.25.5420 Workers Compensation (18,000)         
01.35.25.5460 Medical Insurance (14,000)         
01.35.25.5900 Medicare 2,300           
01.35.25.6005 Administration, Commission Fees 43,500         
01.35.25.6010 Professional Fees (7,000)           
01.35.25.6160 Insurance Property & Auto (10,000)         
01.35.25.6250 Natural Gas 1,150           
01.35.25.6260 Electricity (10,000)         
01.35.25.6270 Telephone & Mobile Devices 2,050           
01.35.25.6380 Equipment Maintenance 9,300           
01.35.25.6600 Tuition Reimbursement (6,000)           
01.35.25.6610 Staff Training (1,000)           
01.35.25.6650 Memberships & Certifications (1,500)           
01.35.25.7050 Publications (6,800)           
01.35.25.7090 Office & Computer Equipment (1,000)           
01.35.25.7210 Chemicals (3,000)           
01.35.25.7530 Medical Supplies 11,300         
01.35.25.7570 Hardware & Hand Tools (2,800)           
01.35.25.7770 Uniforms & Safety Gear 7,700           

10) Public Works - Admin & Engineering
01.40.30.5001 Salaries-Full Time 28,000         Adjust Salaries Full Time, Part Time, related expenditures,
01.40.30.5340 Salaries-Part Time & Temp 2,600           and various other accounts to better align with actual 
01.40.30.5420 Workers Compensation 2,025           spending.  No impact to fund reserves.
01.40.30.5460 Medical Insurance 2,050           
01.40.30.5660 Social Security Contributions 1,450           
01.40.30.6010 Professional Services 7,000           
01.40.30.6050 Maintenance Contracts (1,000)           
01.40.30.6120 Professional Development (2,900)           
01.40.30.6130 Advertising & Public Notices (2,000)           
01.40.30.6140 Photo & Blueprinting Services (800)              
01.40.30.6270 Telephone & Mobile Devices (1,000)           
01.40.30.6400 Office Equipment Maintenance (2,300)           
01.40.30.6610 Staff Training (1,000)           
01.40.30.6650 Memberships & Certifications (1,000)           
01.40.30.6700 Misc Operating Services (2,900)           
01.40.30.7050 Publications (500)              
01.40.30.7090 Office & Computer Equipment (3,000)           

M - 1 - 5



General Fund:
Expenditure Expenditure

Account Increase Decrease Description
Expenditures

FY22 Budget Amendment #4
To Be Approved by City Council

October 10, 2022

11) Public Works - Street Maintenance
01.40.32.5001 Salaries-Full Time (10,000)         Adjust Salaries Full Time, Part Time, related expenditures,
01.40.32.5380 Overtime 6,300           and various other accounts to better align with actual 
01.40.32.5420 Workers Compensation (2,000)           spending.  No impact to fund reserves.
01.40.32.5460 Medical Insurance 4,600           
01.40.32.5660 Social Security Contributions (1,000)           
01.40.32.6010 Professional Services (13,000)         
01.40.32.6070 Temporary Labor (2,000)           
01.40.32.6260 Electricity (20,500)         
01.40.32.6270 Telephone & Mobile Devices (1,000)           
01.40.32.6290 Sewer 1,500           
01.40.32.6380 Equipment Maintenance 6,500           
01.40.32.6410 Traffic Signal Maintenance (9,000)           
01.40.32.6540 Equipment Rental (1,000)           
01.40.32.6610 Staff Training (2,000)           
01.40.32.6660 Laundry Services 2,000           
01.40.32.7210 Chemicals (3,800)           
01.40.32.7290 Concrete & Clay Products (4,000)           
01.40.32.7730 Metal Supplies (2,000)           
01.40.32.7810 Sign Supplies (4,000)           
01.40.32.8040 Bridge Construction (10,000)         
01.40.32.8200 Vehicles & Equipment (8,000)           

12) Public Works - Facilities Maintenance
01.40.36.5001 Salaries-Full Time 28,000         Adjust Salaries Full Time, related expenditures,
01.40.36.5380 Overtime 4,200           and various other accounts to better align with actual 
01.40.36.5460 Medical Insurance 2,600           spending.  No impact to fund reserves.
01.40.36.5660 Social Security Contributions 1,300           
01.40.36.6010 Professional Services (10,000)         
01.40.36.6050 Maintenance Contracts (2,700)           
01.40.36.6070 Temporary Labor 92,000         
01.40.36.6160 Insurance Property & Auto (10,000)         
01.40.36.6250 Natural Gas 7,500           
01.40.36.6260 Electricity 1,200           
01.40.36.6280 Water 11,100         
01.40.36.6290 Sewer 9,800           
01.40.36.6360 Building Maintenance (2,900)           
01.40.36.6380 Equiptment Maintenance 15,300         
01.40.36.6610 Staff Training (1,000)           
01.40.36.6640 Exterminations (3,000)           
01.40.36.6660 Laundry Services 7,800           
01.40.36.7370 Institutional Supplies (8,000)           
01.40.36.7490 Building Materials (1,000)           
01.40.36.7530 Medical Supplies 2,400           
01.40.36.7570 Hardware & Hand Tools (1,000)           

M - 1 - 6



General Fund:
Expenditure Expenditure

Account Increase Decrease Description
Expenditures

FY22 Budget Amendment #4
To Be Approved by City Council

October 10, 2022

13) Planning & Development
01.45.40.5001 Salaries-Full Time (73,240)         Adjust Salaries Full Time, Part Time, related expenditures,
01.45.40.5340 Salaries-Part Time & Temp (3,500)           and various other accounts to better align with actual 
01.45.40.5420 Workers Compensation (4,000)           spending.  No impact to fund reserves.
01.45.40.5460 Medical Insurance 18,150         
01.45.40.5660 Social Security Contributions (13,000)         
01.45.40.5900 Medicare (3,000)           
01.45.40.6010 Professional Services (43,240)         
01.45.40.6020 Legal Services (2,000)           
01.45.40.6050 Maintenance Contracts 50,000         
01.45.40.6110 Mileage Reimbursements 8,000           
01.45.40.6270 Telephone & Mobile Devices (3,000)           
01.45.40.6510 Demolition & Board Ups (33,250)         
01.45.40.6660 Laundry Services 8,000           
01.45.40.6770 Bank & Credit Card Fees 7,000           
01.45.40.7090 Office & Computer Equipment (1,500)           
01.45.40.7770 Uniforms & Safety Gear (7,345)           

14) Parks, Recreation & Forestry - Park Maintenance
01.50.45.5001.01 Salaries-Full Time COVID19 2,100           Adjust Salaries Full Time, Part Time, related expenditures,
01.50.45.5340 Salaries-Part Time & Temp (9,785)           and various other accounts to better align with actual 
01.50.45.5380 Overtime 8,100           spending.  No impact to fund reserves.
01.50.45.5420 Workers Compensation (12,000)         
01.50.45.5660 Social Security Contributions (2,800)           
01.50.45.6010 Professional Services 1,200           
01.50.45.6050 Maintenance Contracts (15,000)         
01.50.45.6070 Temporary Labor 8,500           
01.50.45.6170 Insurance-Liability 1,800           
01.50.45.6270 Telephone & Mobile Devices 1,100           
01.50.45.6280 Water (6,515)           
01.50.45.6290 Sewer 10,400         
01.50.45.7530 Medical Supplies 1,800           
01.50.45.7570 Hardware & Hand Tools 4,100           
01.50.45.7690 Recreational Supplies 7,000           
01.50.45.8100 Misc Improvements (1,100)           
01.50.95.8100 Misc Improvements 1,100           

Change in Expenditures - No Impact -                

Total General Fund
  Increase in Fund Balance 1,223,010     

The effect on the General Fund from these amendments are as follows:

Original Adopted Budget (Deficit) (111,000)$     
Change in Budget Amendment #1 (24,952)         
Balance after Budget Amendment #1 (135,952)$     
Change in Budget Amendment #2 1,045,347     
Balance after Budget Amendment #2 909,395        
Change in Budget Amendment #3 (312,300)       
Balance after Budget Amendment #3 597,095        
Change in Budget Amendment #4 1,223,010     
Balance after Budget Amendment #4 1,820,105     

M - 1 - 7



Solid Waste Fund:

Revenue Revenue
Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 08.4845 Misc Waste Services 18,000         Increase due to Wash U using our trash service, dumpster,
for end of the school year clean up.

Expenditure Expenditure
Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 08.40.64.5001 Salaries-Full Time (19,000)       Adjust Salaries Full Time, related expenditures,
08.40.64.5460 Medical Insurance (1,000)         and various other accounts to better align with actual 
08.40.64.5660 Social Security Contributions (1,000)         spending.  No impact to fund reserves.
08.40.64.6005 Administration, Commission, Fees (1,100)         
08.40.64.6090 Postage 4,000           
08.40.64.6730 Lien Recording Fees 2,600           
08.40.64.6770 Bank & Credit Card Fees 6,700           
08.40.64.8001 Building Improvements 8,800           

2) 08.40.66.5001 Salaries-Full Time (100,000)     Adjust Salaries Full Time, related expenditures,
08.40.66.5001.01 Salaries-Full Time COVID19 1,300           and various other accounts to better align with actual 
08.40.66.5220 Injury Leave 1,700           spending.  No impact to fund reserves.
08.40.66.5340 Salaries-Part Time & Temp (30,000)       
08.40.66.5380 Overtime 66,000         
08.40.66.5420 Workers Compensation 12,500         
08.40.66.5460 Medical Insurance 3,400           
08.40.66.6050 Maintenance Contracts (59,000)       
08.40.66.6070 Temporary Labor 165,000       
08.40.66.6120 Professional Development (4,000)         
08.40.66.6150 Printing Services (7,000)         
08.40.66.6160 Insurance-Property & Auto (9,000)         
08.40.66.6380 Equipment Maintenance 16,000         
08.40.66.6660 Laundry Services 2,800           
08.40.66.6710 Waste Dumping Fees (132,000)     
08.40.66.7210 Chemicals 38,000         
08.40.66.7370 Institutional Supplies 14,600         
08.40.66.7490 Building Materials 15,800         
08.40.66.7570 Hardware & Hand Tools 2,300           
08.40.66.7770 Uniforms & Safety Gear (1,500)         
08.40.66.9201 Interfund Loan Interest 3,100           

3) 08.40.68.6050 Maintenance Contracts 71,000         
08.40.68.6070 Temporary Labor 8,200           Adjust expenditures to better align with actual spending.

This will have a reduction to fund reserves.
08.40.90.8100 Misc Improvements 35,500         
08.40.95.8100 Misc Improvements (20,000)       

Total Solid Waste Fund
  Reduction to Fund Balance (76,700)       

FY22 Budget Amendment #4
To Be Approved by City Council

October 10, 2022

M - 1 - 8



FY22 Budget Amendment #4
To Be Approved by City Council

October 10, 2022

Economic Development Retail Sales Tax Fund:
Revenue Revenue

Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 11.415 Economic Dev Sales Tax 176,000       Increase in sales tax due to portion of sales tax generated
from TIF and over originally budgeted.

Total Economic Development Retail Sales Tax Fund
  Increase to Fund Balance 176,000       

Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund:
Revenue Revenue

Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 12.4110 Capital Improvement (pool) 548,000       -              Increase in sales tax over orginally budgeted.

Expenditure Expenditure
Account Increase Decrease

1) 12.40.90.5001 Salaries-Part Time & Temp 7,000           Adjust Salaries Part Time and related expenditures,
12.40.90.5380 Overtime 2,500           to better align with actual spending.
12.40.90.5460 Medical Insurance (7,000)         No impact to fund reserves.
12.40.90.5660 Social Security Contributions (2,500)         

Total Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund
  Increase to Fund Balance 548,000       

Parks & Stormwater Sales Tax Fund:
Revenue Revenue

Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 14.4120 Park Sales Tax (pt of sale) 542,000       -              Increase in sales tax due to portion of sales tax generated
from TIF and over originally budgeted.

Expenditure Expenditure
Account Increase Decrease

1) 14.40.90.5001 Salaries-Full Time -               (5,400)         Adjust expenditures to better align with actual spending.
14.40.90.5380 Overtime 5,400           No impact to fund reserves.

Total Parks & Stormwater Sales Tax Fund
  Increase in Fund Balance 542,000       

M - 1 - 9



FY22 Budget Amendment #4
To Be Approved by City Council

October 10, 2022

Public Safety Sales Tax Fund:
Revenue Revenue

Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 15.4117 Public Safety Sales Tax (pool) 565,000       Increase in sales tax over orginally budgeted.
-              

 

Expenditure Expenditure
Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 15.30.90.8275.01 2,114,185    Adjust expenditure to better align with actual spending.
This will have a reduction to fund reserves.

Total Public Safety Sales Tax Fund
  Reduction in Fund Balance (1,549,185)  

CALOP Fund:
Expenditure Expenditure

Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 17.16.80.6185 Film Grants 81,000         Adjust expenditure to better align with actual spending.
This will have a reduction to fund reserves.

Total CALOP Fund
  Reduction in Fund Balance (81,000)       

Parking Garage Fund:

Revenue Revenue
Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 27.4755 Monthly Parking Permits (39,000)       Adjust revenues to better align with actual receipts.
27.4822 Rental of Property 39,000         No impact to fund reserves.

Total Parking Garage Fund
  No Impact to Fund Balance -              

Golf Course Fund:
Revenue Revenue

Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 28.4601 Golf Course 317,000       Adjust revenues to better align with actual receipts.

Expenditure Expenditure
Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 28.50.47.5001 Salaries Full-Time (45,000)       
28.50.47.5340 Salaries-Part Time & Temp 23,500         Adjust expenditures to better align with actual spending.
28.50.47.5420 Workers Compensation 4,500           No impact to fund reserves.
28.50.47.5460 Medical Insurance (3,000)         
28.50.47.7330 Food 6,500           
28.50.47.7690 Recreational Supplies 14,600         
28.50.47.7130 Agricultural Supplies (1,100)         

Total Golf Course Fund
  Increase to Fund Balance 317,000       

Building Improvements - 
Annex/Trinity

M - 1 - 10



American Rescue Plan Fund
Revenue Revenue

Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 29.4804 Misc Operating Revenue 33,200        Increase due to receiving supplemental amount of 
ARPA Funds.  

Expenditure Expenditure
Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 29.70.91.6010 Professional Services 5,000          Increase due to consulting services agreement with
Armanino, LLC, to provide oversight of ARPA 
funds. Funds to come from fund reserves. Council
approved 11.22.21.

Total American Rescue Plan Fund
  Increase to Fund Balance 28,200        

Olive I-170 TIF Fund (T2) RPA-1
Revenue Revenue

Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 30.4035 Payment in Lieu of Taxes 20,600        Increase due to receipts of Payment in Lieu of Taxes
for RPA 1.

Expenditure Expenditure
Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 30.12.73.9070 Community Dev Expense 77,300        Increase due to required transfers to the Trustee,
BOKF, per the Trust Indenture.  Funds to come 
from fund reserves.

Total Olive I-170 TIF Fund (T2) RPA-1
  Reduction to Fund Balance (56,700)       

Olive I-170 TIF Fund (T3) RPA-2
Revenue Revenue

Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 31.4035 Payment in Lieu of Taxes 270,500      Increase due to receipts of Payment in Lieu of Taxes
31.4045 TIF Revenue 13,500        for RPA 2 and receipts of sales tax above the base.
31.4110 Capital Improvement 5,400          

Total Olive I-170 TIF Fund (T3) RPA-2
  Increase to Fund Balance 289,400      

Olive I-170 TIF Fund (T4) RPA-3
Revenue Revenue

Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 32.4035 Payment in Lieu of Taxes 35,900        Increase due to receipts of Payment in Lieu of Taxes
32.4045 TIF Revenue 50,800        for RPA 3 and receipts of sales tax above the base.
32.4110 Capital Improvement 17,700        

Total Olive I-170 TIF Fund (T4) RPA-3
  Increase to Fund Balance 104,400      

FY22 Budget Amendment #4
To Be Approved by City Council

October 10, 2022

M - 1 - 11



Resolution 2022 - 12 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 (FY22) 
BUDGET – AMENDMENT # 4 AND APPROPRIATING SAID AMOUNTS 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of University 

City, Missouri, that the Annual Budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021, was 

approved by the City Council and circumstances now warrant amendment to that original 

budget. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in accordance with the City Charter, the several 

amounts stated in the budget amendment as presented, are herewith appropriated to the 

several objects and purposes named. 

Adopted this 10th day of October 2022. 

________________________________ 
Mayor  

Attest: 

_______________________________ 
City Clerk 

Certified to be Correct as to Form: 

_______________________________ 
City Attorney 

M - 1 - 12



M - 2 - 1



 
INTRODUCED BY:________________    DATE: October 10, 2022 
 
BILL  9487        ORDINANCE NO. 
 

AN ORDINANCE VACATING AND SURRENDERING A PUBLIC 
WALKWAY BETWEEN 511 and 519 WESTVIEW DRIVE. 

 
 

WHEREAS, there is a public walkway between 511 and 519 Westview Drive in University View, 
a subdivision within the City of University City, in St. Louis County, Missouri, recorded in Plat Book 
19, Page 45 of the St. Louis County Recorder of Deeds in Clayton, Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, due notice of a public hearing on the vacation of said public walkway to be held by 
the City Council of City of University City Council October 10, 2022 at 6:30 p.m., was duly published 
in the St. Louis Countian, a newspaper of general circulation within said City, on September 25, 2022; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, said public hearing was held at the time and place specified in said notice, and all 

comments concerning said vacation were duly heard and considered by the City Council. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY 
CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.  The public walkway between 511 and 519 Westview Drive in University View, a 
subdivision within the City of University City in St. Louis County, Missouri, recorded in Plat Book 19, 
Page 45 of the St. Louis County Recorder of Deeds, and all of said City's rights, title and interest therein 
is hereby vacated, surrendered and quitclaimed, but reserving all public utility easements, if any. 

 
Section 2. Said public walkway is further described and shown hachured on the attached Walk Vacation 

Plat, marked “Exhibit A” and incorporated herein by this reference thereto. 

Section 3. The City Clerk is hereby directed to have this ordinance recorded in the office of the 
Recorder of Deeds of St. Louis County, Missouri. 

Section 4. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as provided by 
law. 
 
 
PASSED and ADOPTED this ________ day of ____________, 2022. 
 
 

________________________________ 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 

  CITY CLERK 
 
CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 

 CITY ATTORNEY 
 

M - 2 - 2



 
“EXHIBIT A” 

 

M - 2 - 3



M - 2 - 4



M - 3 - 1



  

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
September 28, 2022 
 
 
Ms. LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 
 
 
RE: Final Development Plan Approval – Market at Olive – Phase II Development 

 
Dear Ms. Reese, 
 
At a regularly scheduled meeting, on September 28, 2022, at 6:30 p.m. via video 
conference, the Plan Commission considered the above-referenced application by 170 
and Olive Holdco, LLC to approve the Final Development Plan for their proposed 
Market at Olive Development, Phase II 
 
By a vote of 4 for and 0 against, the Plan Commission recommended approval of said 
resolution. 

 
Margaret Holly, Chairperson 
University City Plan Commission 
 
 
 
 

Plan Commission 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 

M - 3 - 2



INTRODUCED BY:________________ DATE:__________ 

BILL NO.  Bill 9488 ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR 
PHASE II  OF THE PROPOSED MARKET AT OLIVE  DEVELOPMENT 

LOCATED AT 8630 OLIVE BOULEVARD. 

WHEREAS, the Preliminary Development Plan was approved by the City Council of 
University City on May 9, 2022 by Resolution No. 2022-4, for the development project known 
as “Market at Olive, Phase II” in a Planned Development – Commercial (PD-C) District in the 
City of University City, and the City Council authorized the submittal of a Final Development 
Plan; and 

WHEREAS, a Final Development Plan dated November 19, 2021, has been submitted 
for review and approval; and  

WHEREAS, the review and approval of a Final Development Plan shall be in 
accordance with Section 400.870 “Final Development Plan Procedure” and Section 405.380 
“Final Plat Submittal Requirements” of the University City Municipal Code with the adoption of 
an ordinance by City Council; and  

WHEREAS, at its meeting on September 28, 2022, the University City Plan 
Commission considered and recommended to the City Council of University City approval of the 
Final Development Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the lot consolidation was approved by Ordinance No. 7177 on April 25, 
2022 and by Ordinance No. 7200 on September 27, 2022. 

WHEREAS, the Final Development Plan, including all required documents and 
information submitted therewith, is before the City Council for its consideration. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Attached, marked “Exhibit A” and made a part hereof is a Final Development 
Plan submitted for the “Market at Olive, Phase II” development.  

Section 2. It is hereby found and determined that the Final Development Plan is in full 
compliance with said Section 400.870 of the University City Municipal Code. 

Section 3. The Final Development Plan shall include the following additional conditions: 

1. The buildings and property shall be developed, constructed and maintained in compliance
with the plans submitted and attached. The footprint and general layout are subject to the

M - 3 - 3



plans dated November 19, 2021 and the Landscape Plan dated July 15, 2022. The height 
and mass shall be restricted to that shown on the Final Development Plan. 

 
2. Off-street parking and loading requirements shall be provided as required by Chapter 

400, Article VII of the University City Zoning Code as may be approved by Conditional 
Use Permits for Lot 9 and Lot 10.  

 
3. A detailed construction traffic control and parking plan should be submitted to the 

Director of Planning & Development for approval. Said plan shall set forth details 
pertaining to worker and resident parking during all phases of the proposed construction. 
It shall further detail solutions to public property maintenance issues such as street 
cleaning and traffic diversion. Said plan shall be finalized prior to the issuance of a 
building permit. It shall be the applicant’s responsibility to obtain those approvals in 
written form in a timely manner prior to issuance of the building permit. 

 
4. The Landscape Plan shall be approved by the Director of Planning and Development. 

 
Section 4. The City Clerk is hereby directed to endorse upon the Final Development Plan 

the approval of the City Council under the hand of the City Clerk and the seal of University City. 
 

Section 5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 
provided by law. 
 
 
 
PASSED and ADOPTED this ________ day of ____________, 2022. 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 

  CITY CLERK 
 
CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 

 CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
 

 
Exhibit A 

 

M - 3 - 4



 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 

M - 3 - 5



 
 
 

Exhibit A 

M - 3 - 6



 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 

M - 3 - 7



 

M - 3 - 8


	J4 - All Leaf Collection.pdf
	Bid results.pdf
	SSN30821101910430
	SSN30821101911540


	J5 - All Supplemental Agreement #11 - Groby Rd Resurfacing STP Project - U. City-Cochran.pdf
	Blank Page

	K1 - All Employee Recognition.pdf
	Blank Page

	M1 - All FY2022 Budget Amendment 4.pdf
	Gen Fd Rev
	Gen Fd Exp
	Other Funds
	Other Funds 2

	M2 - Bill 9487 - Easment Vacation Walkway 511and 519 Westview Drive.pdf
	AN ORDINANCE VACATING AND SURRENDERING A PUBLIC
	WALKWAY BETWEEN 511 and 519 WESTVIEW DRIVE.
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

	2022-09-27 Draft Minutes with comments R.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page




